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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVENUE, SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 
 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AGENDA  

 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 24, 2019 

6:00 PM 

 

County of Imperial Administration Center 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 

940 W. Main Street, Second Floor 

El Centro, CA 92243 

 

CHAIR:   ROBERT AMPARANO               VICE CHAIR: GEORGE NAVA 

Individuals wishing accessibility accommodations at this meeting, under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), may request 

such accommodations to aid hearing, visual, or mobility impairment by contacting ICTC offices at (760) 592-4494.  Please note 

that 48 hours advance notice will be necessary to honor your request. 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL   
 

II. EMERGENCY ITEMS 
 

A. Discussion/Action of emergency items, if necessary.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Any member of the public may address the Commission for a period not to exceed three minutes on any item of interest not 

on the agenda within the jurisdiction of the Commission.  The Commission will listen to all communication, but in 

compliance with the Brown Act, will not take any action on items that are not on the agenda. 
 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 (Executive Director recommends approval of consent calendar items) 
 

A.  Approval of the ICTC Commission Draft Minutes:  June 26, 2019 

 

 Receive and File: 

1. ICTC TAC Minutes:     June 27, 2019 

 

C. 5310 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Grant Program for Elderly and Disabled 

Transportation Services FY 2018-20 – ICTC grant application 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for 

review and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 
 

CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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1. Authorize the Executive Director or his designee to submit an FTA 5310 FY 2018-20 Grant, 

execute all required documents and any amendments with the California Department of 

Transportation, in an estimated amount of $400,000 for the funding of the Regional Mobility 

Coordination Program. 

2. Authorize the ICTC Chairperson to sign the attached resolution 

3. Direct staff to forward the FTA 5310 Grant Application and associated documentation to the 

California Department of Transportation. 

 

D. State of Good Repair Grant Program, FY 2019-20 

  Staff forwards this item to the Commission for review and approval after public comment, if any: 

 

1. Approve the attached resolution authorizing the Executive Director or his designee to take any 

actions necessary on behalf of the ICTC for the purposes of obtaining FY 2019-20 financial 

assistance, provided by the State of California Department of Transportation under the State of 

Good Repair Grant Program. 

 

V. REPORTS (Up to 5 minutes per staff report) 

 
A. ICTC Executive Director  

• See attached Executive Director Report  

B. Southern California Association of Governments 

• See attached report  

C. California Department of Transportation – District 11 

• See attached report  

D. Commission Member Reports (if any)  

 

VI. ACTION CALENDAR 

 
A. Legal Services Agreement – County of Imperial – Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) FY 

2019-20 to FY 2020-21 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Authorize the Chairperson to sign the agreement for the continuation of legal services between the 

County of Imperial and the Imperial County Transportation Commission for an annual fee not to 

exceed $30,000, effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021.   

2. Direct staff to forward the agreement to the County of Imperial. 

 

B. Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Program Fiscal Audits for FY 2017-18 

 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Receive and file the Transportation Development Act and other program fiscal audits for the Imperial 

County Transportation Commission, for FY 2017-18. 

2. Direct staff to transmit the fiscal audits to the State Controller’s Office. 

 

C. Competitive Bid Process for the IMPERIAL VALLEY TRANSIT (IVT) Fixed Route Bus System – 5 Year 

Operating Agreement, FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an operating agreement with FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the 

continued operation of Imperial Valley Transit/IVT Blue Green and Gold with an annual not to 

exceed annual operating subsidy (as listed),  with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing 

allowance, with an annual fuel escalator clause:  
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   Imperial Valley Transit: 

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $2,660,409. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$3,767,739. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$3,906,085. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$4,025,477. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$4,189,334. 

 

   Imperial Valley Transit Blue and Green Lines: 

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $559,311. 
B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$604,765. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$626,973 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$646,136. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$672,437. 

    

   Imperial Valley Transit Gold Line: 

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $291,197. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$314,862. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$326,424. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$336,401. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$350,094. 

2. Adopt the Performance Goals for the operation of Imperial Valley Transit, and for the operation of 

the IVT Blue, Green and Gold Lines 

3. Direct staff to terminate for convenience the FY 2019 IVT contract extension approved on June 28, 

2019. 

 

D. Competitive Bid Process for the IVT ACCESS ADA Paratransit System – 5 Year Operating Agreement, FY 

2019-20 to FY 2023-24  

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  
 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an operating agreement with FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the 

continued operation of IVT ACCESS with an annual not to exceed annual operating subsidy (as 

listed), with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance, with an annual fuel escalator 

clause:  

  

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $1,254,303. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$1,440,415. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$1,503,249. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$1,555,164. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$1,641,553. 
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2. Adopt the Performance Goals for the operation of IVT ACCESS 

3. Direct staff to terminate for convenience the FY 2019 IVT ACCESS contract extension approved on 

June 28, 2019. 

 

E. Competitive Bid Process for the IVT MedTrans Paratransit System – 5 Year Operating Agreement, FY 2019-

20 to FY 2023-24 

 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an operating agreement with FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the 

continued operation of IVT MedTrans with an annual not to exceed annual operating subsidy (as 

listed), with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance, with an annual fuel escalator 

clause:  

  

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $440,330. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$507,041. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$531,401. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$550,076. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$594,555. 

 

2. Adopt the Performance Goals for the operation of IVT MedTrans 

3. Direct staff to terminate for convenience the FY 2019 IVT MedTrans contract extension approved on 

June 28, 2019. 

 

F. Competitive Bid Process for the IVT RIDE Paratransit System – 5 Year Operating Agreement, FY 2019-20 to 

FY 2023-24 

 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for review 

and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an operating agreement with FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the 

continued operation of IVT RIDE with an annual not to exceed annual operating subsidy (as listed), 

with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance, with an annual fuel escalator clause:  

 

   BRAWLEY  

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $219,637. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$252,851. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$262,324. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$270,493. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$285,244. 

 

   CALEXICO  

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $362,770. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$417,628. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$433,275. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$446,767. 
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E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$471,132. 

 

   EL CENTRO- IMPERIAL-HEBER 

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $748,201. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$861,344. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$893,616. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$921,442. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$971,693. 

 

   WEST SHORES 

A. For the period August 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy is 

set at $46,780. 

B. For the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$53,854. 

C. For the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$55,872. 

D. For the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$57,612. 

E. For the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at 

$60,754. 

2. Adopt the Performance Goals for the operation of IVT RIDE for Brawley, Calexico, El Centro- 

Imperial-Heber and the West Shores. 

3. Direct staff to terminate for convenience the FY 2019 IVT RIDE contract extensions approved on 

June 28, 2019. 

 

G. Reallocation of budgeted FY 19-20 funding allocated towards the Rio Vista Bus Stop Improvements to the 

Pioneers Memorial Hospital Bus Stop Improvements 

 

  ICTC Staff presents this item to the Commission for review and approval after public comment, if any.  

  

1. Approve the reallocation of $180,000.00 in budgeted FY 19-20 funding dedicated towards the Rio 

Vista Bus Stop Improvements towards the Pioneers Memorial Hospital Bus Stop Improvements. 

 

VII. CLOSED SESSION 

 
A. Motion to Adjourn to Closed Session  

 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code § 54957            

  Title:  ICTC Executive Director 

 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code § 54957.6) 

 Agency Designated Representative:  Eric Havens  

 Unrepresented Employee:  Executive Director  

 

D. Announcement of Closed Session Action(s)  

 

VIII. ACTION CALENDAR  

 
A. Discussion / Action regarding Employment Agreement for the Position of Executive Director  

 

 

 

5

cristilerma
Typewritten Text
Page 358

cristilerma
Typewritten Text
Page 363



T: Projects\ICTC Commission\2020\A072419 

 

ICTC COMMISSION     Page 6     July 24, 2019 
 

 

IX. MEETING DATE AND PLACE 

 
A. Pending the need for agenda items, the next meeting of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 

will be held on Wednesday, September 25, 2019 at 6:00 p.m., at the County of Imperial Board Chambers, 

at 940 W. Main Street, El Centro, CA. 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT  

 
A. Motion to adjourn  
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A.     APPROVAL OF ICTC COMMISSION DRAFT 

MINUTES:  

JUNE 26, 2019 

JUNE 28, 2019 

 

B. RECEIVE AND FILE :  

1. ICTC MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE DRAFT 
MINUTES:  

JULY 10, 2019 

2. ICTC TAC MINUTES: 

JUNE 27, 2019 
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 IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

DRAFT MINUTES FOR JUNE 26, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:  

     City of Brawley  George Nava 

     City of Calexico  Lewis Pacheco 

     City of El Centro  Cheryl Viegas-Walker 

     City of Imperial  Robert Amparano (Chair) 

     County of Imperial  Luis Plancarte 

      

        

NON-VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: Caltrans District 11  Ann Fox 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Mark Baza, Kathi Williams, David Aguirre, Cristi Lerma, Michelle Bastidas, 

Virginia 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: David Salgado: SCAG, Eric Havens: County Counsel, Jesus Vargas: Caltrans, Cesar 

Sanchez:  First Transit, William Roller: I.V. Press. 

 

The following action minutes are listed as they were acted upon by the Imperial County Transportation 

Commission and as listed on the agenda for the meeting held Wednesday, June 26, 2019 together with staff 

reports and related documents attached thereto and incorporated therein by reference. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL   

Chair Amparano called the Commission meeting to order at 6:12 p.m.  Roll call was taken and a 

quorum was not present. 

 

II. EMERGENCY ITEMS 

  There were none.  

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

There were none. 

   

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All consent items were not approved due to lack of quorum.  

 

A. Approval of the ICTC Commission Draft Minutes: May 22, 2019 

B. Receive and File: 

1. ICTC Management Committee Draft Minutes:  June 12, 2019 

2. ICTC TAC Minutes:     May 23, 2019 

3. ICTC SSTAC Minutes:    May 1, 2019 

 

C. FY 2019-20 Fourth Revision to Memorandum of Understanding (MOU); ICTC - Quechan 

Indian Tribe - Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transit Authority (YCIPTA) for 

Turquoise Route #10 and Blue Route #5 

 
1. Authorize the Chairperson to sign the Fourth Extension to the Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public 

Transportation Authority (YCIPTA), The Imperial County Transportation 

Commission (ICTC) and the Quechan Indian Tribe for the continued 

implementation and operation of a regional connector bus service (YCAT 

Turquoise #10) between Yuma AZ, Winterhaven and El Centro, California; and, 
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a circulator route from Yuma with stops in the eastern Imperial County area 

(YCAT Blue #5) effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 and provide a not 

to exceed subsidy to the Quechan Tribe and YCIPTA in an amount of $158,262.71. 

 

D. Contract Extension for the IMPERIAL VALLEY TRANSIT (IVT); Fixed Route Bus 

System - Operating Agreement, FY 2019-20 

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign a one-year extension to the operating agreement with 

FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the operation of the IVT fixed route bus system, for the 

period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020: 

a. The cost for IVT shall be based upon the pricing as provided in the original 

contract option year pricing sheet dated April 2011, adjusted for the FY 2019-

20 year at fixed costs of $73,300.08 monthly and variable hourly costs at 

$75.81 per hour for an average of 2,830 hours monthly, farebox established at 

17%,  

b. The cost for IVT Blue and Green Lines line shall be based upon the pricing as 

provided in the original contract option year pricing sheet dated April 2011, 

adjusted for the FY 2019-20 year at fixed costs of $13,889.84 monthly and 

variable hourly costs at $75.81 per hour for an average of 524 hours monthly, 

farebox established at 4%, 

c. The cost for IVT Gold Line shall be based upon the pricing as provided in the 

original contract option year pricing sheet dated April 2011, adjusted for the 

FY 2019-20 year at fixed costs of $0.00 monthly and variable hourly costs at 

$75.81 per hour for an average of 272 hours monthly, farebox established at 

4%, 

d. With an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance and an annual fuel 

escalator clause. 

 

E. Contract Extension for the IVT ACCESS; ADA Paratransit Services - Operating Agreement, 

FY 2019-20 

 

The ICTC Management Committee met on June 12, 2019 and forwards this item to the 

Commission for review and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign a one-year extension to the operating agreement with 

FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the operation of the IVT ACCESS Paratransit Service, for 

the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020: 

a. The cost shall be based upon the pricing as provided in the original contract 

option year pricing sheet dated April 2011, adjusted for the FY 2019-20 year 

at fixed costs of $40,408.58 monthly and variable hourly costs at $71.16 per 

hour for an average of 1,130 hours monthly, farebox established at 10%, with 

an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance and an annual fuel 

escalator clause. 

 

F. Contract Extension for the Coordination of Public Dial-a-Ride Paratransit Services – IVT 

RIDE El Centro Agreement FY 2019-20 

 
1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an extension to the operating agreement with FIRST 

TRANSIT, INC. for the operation of the IVT RIDE Paratransit Service for the period 

July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 with an annual not to exceed operating subsidy, 

with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance, with an annual fuel 

escalator clause: 

a. El Centro Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the 

annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $617,943. 
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b. Heber Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the 

annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $68,432. 
 

G. Contract Extension for the Coordination of Public Dial-a-Ride Paratransit Services –IVT 

RIDE Brawley-Calexico-Imperial-West Shores Agreement FY 2019-20 

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign an extension to the operating agreement with FIRST 

TRANSIT, INC. for the operation of the IVT RIDE Paratransit Service for the period 

July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 with an annual not to exceed operating subsidy, 

with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance, with an annual fuel 

escalator clause: 

a. Brawley Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the 

annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $291,437. 

b. Calexico Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the 

annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $409,961. 

c. Imperial Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the 

annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $198,733. 

d. West Shores Service Area - For the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, 

the annual not to exceed subsidy is set at $75,875. 

 

H. Contract Extension for the IVT MedTrans; non-emergency transportation to medical facilities 

in San Diego - Operating Agreement, FY 2019-20 

 

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign a one year extension to the operating agreement with 

FIRST TRANSIT, INC. for the operation of the IVT MedTrans Paratransit Service, 

for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the annual not to exceed subsidy 

is set at $434,829, with an annual not to exceed up to 5% marketing allowance and 

an annual fuel escalator clause. 

 

V. REPORTS 

 

A. ICTC Executive Director 

- A full list of updates and announcements can be found on page 82 of the agenda. 

 

B. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG)  

- A full list of updates and announcements can be found on page 92 of the agenda. 

 

C. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 

- A full list of updates and announcements can be found on page 94 of the agenda. 

   

D. Commission Member Reports   

- Commissioners had various announcements regarding events occurring in their 

jurisdiction.  

 

VI. ACTION CALENDER 

All action items were not approved due to lack of quorum.  

  

A. Calexico West Port of Entry Traffic Circulation Plan 

 
The ICTC Management Committee met on June 12, 2019 and forwards this item to the 

Commission for review and approval, after the receipt of public comment:  

 

1. Approve the Calexico West Port of Entry Traffic Circulation Plan. 
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B. Draft ICTC Overall Work Program (OWP) and Budget, FY 2019-20 

 

1. Adopt the Draft ICTC Overall Work Program (OWP) and Budget for FY 2019-2020. 
 

C. 2nd Competitive Bid for the IVT RIDE– Public Outreach and Marketing Services – FY 2020-

2022 

 
1. Authorize the Chairman to sign the IVT RIDE Public Outreach and Marketing 

Consultant Agreement with the firm of NSD Investments Inc. DBA Spectrum 

Advertising for the not to exceed fee of $149,500, effective July 1, 2019 through June 

30, 2022. 

 
D. 2nd Competitive Bid for the IVT MedTrans Paratransit– Public Outreach and Marketing 

Services – FY 2020-2022 

 

1. Authorize the Chairman to sign the IVT MedTrans Public Outreach and Marketing 

Consultant Agreement with the firm of Franklin Lee Enterprises L.L.C. dba 

CONVEYOR GROUP, for the not to exceed fee of $149,820, effective July 1, 2019 

through June 30, 2022. 

 
VII. CLOSED SESSION 

The Commission did not meet in closed session due to a to lack of quorum.  

 
A. Motion to Adjourn to Closed Session  

 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code § 54957            

  Title:  ICTC Executive Director 

 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code § 54957.6) 

  Agency Designated Representative:  Eric Havens  

 Unrepresented Employee:  Executive Director  

 

D. Announcement of Closed Session Action(s)  

 

VIII. NEXT MEETING DATE AND PLACE 

 

A. A SPECIAL meeting of the Imperial County Transportation Commission will be held 

on Friday, June 28, 2019 at 6:00 p.m., at the County of Imperial Board Chambers, at 940 

W. Main Street, El Centro, CA. All Commissioners present confirmed their attendance.  

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT  

 

A. Meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

June 27, 2019 

 Present:  
  

 Lily Falomir   City of Calexico 

 Victor Garcia   City of Brawley 

 Abraham Campos  City of El Centro  

 Javier Luna   City of El Centro  

 Isabel Alvarez   City of Imperial  

 Veronica Atondo  County of Imperial 

 Joel Hamby   City of Westmorland 

  
  

 Others: 

 Virginia Mendoza  ICTC 

 Marlene Flores    ICTC 

 Benjamin Guerrero  Caltrans 

 Erwin Gojuangco  Caltrans 

 Joseph Chua   Caltrans  

 Felix de Leon Jr.  City of El Centro  

 David Salgado   SCAG 

 Paola Jaramillo   The Holt Group 

  

    

1. The meeting was called to order at 10:07 a.m. A quorum was present, and introductions were made.  

There were no public comments made.  

 

2. A motion was made to adopt the minutes for April 4, 2019 (Falomir/Atondo) Motion Carried. 

 

3. A motion was made to adopt the minutes for May 23, 2019 (Falomir/Atondo) Motion Carried. 

 

4. Project Implementation Process- Ms. Mendoza provided a flowchart that illustrates the process 

of implementation federal funded projects. The flowchart was designed as tool for local agencies 

and county to highlight key processing and decision points from start to finish.  Local agencies 

were able to provide their input on the process. ICTC will work on the Project Implementation 

Process for State funded projects. Ms. Atondo mentioned that the flowchart is a great tool for all 

agencies and county and if we can provide a copy or present the presentation on the next 

management meeting. Caltrans staff provided input to the process.  
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5. ICTC Updates / Announcements  

(Presented by ICTC Staff) 

 

a. Transit Planning Updates 

- IVT, IVT ACCESS, IVT RIDE and IVT MedTrans Public Transit Services 

A quick update was provided in regards to the proposals received for 

professional services to continue the fixed route bus system and three paratransit 

services currently in place for the next three to five years. Recommendations was 

taken to Commission on June 26, 2019, but there was no quorum.  

b. Transportation Planning Updates (By Virginia Mendoza): 

- Regional Climate Action Plan- Ms. Mendoza provided information on the 

Regional Climate Action Plan Kick-off meeting.  ICTC had the kickoff meeting 

on June 10, 2019. Ms. Mendoza mentioned how ICTC will need input from all 

agencies for this project.  

- Traffic Circulation Plan- Ms. Mendoza presented the traffic circulation plan to 

the City of Calexico Council on June 5, 2019 during their monthly council 

meeting. Ms. Mendoza provided a presentation in collaboration with KOA 

consultant. The Traffic Circulation Plan was taken to Commission on June 26th.  

c. FFY 2018-19 Programmed Project Updates (By Virginia Mendoza): 

- Update on State and Federal funding obligations. A complete list of programmed 

projects was provided as an attachment to the agenda. Each agency provided an 

update on the current status of each project.  

d. SB 1 2018 Local Partnership Program (LPP) (by Virginia Mendoza): 

- Mrs. Mendoza provided a list of all LPP projects that were approved by the 

California Transportation Commission (CTC) during the May 2019 allocation 

vote. The list provides agencies with programming dates. If there are any updates 

to the LPP projects, ICTC will contact each agency.  

e. LTA Updates (Virginia Mendoza): 

- 2018 LTA Bond. City of Holtville already process their first request.  

- The City of Calexico and City of Brawley still have a balance on their respective 

2012 LTA Bond accounts.  

 

6. SR 186 Speed Reduction (Presented by Caltrans staff)  

The Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) had a finding to upgrade the bridge rail at the All-American 

Check Bridge on SR-186.  While the BOR works on the design of the improvements, the existing 

speed limit on SR-186 is 40 mph and will be reduced to 30 mph to facilitate the safe and orderly 

movement of vehicular traffic on the All-American Canal Check Bridge.   

A Public Hearing for the speed reductions on the bridge was on Wednesday, June 26, 2019 in the 

Imperial County Public Works Office.  

 

7. SCAG Updates / Announcements:  

- SCAG updates on upcoming events.  
 

8. Cities and County Planning / Public Works Updates: 

- Local agencies gave an update on their local projects in progress.  

 

9. Caltrans Updates / Announcements (By Joseph Chua)  

-     Caltrans provided updates on: 

DBE Methodology Updates: Mr. Benjamin Guerrero provided information on how agencies 

and county need to use the updated Local Assistance Procedures Manual Exhibit 9 D template 

to calculate Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goals.   
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Inactive Projects: As of June 13, 2019, the inactive and future inactive list was updated. Action 

is required by the ICTC, and all cities. The next deadline to submit Inactive and Future            

Inactive Invoices is August 20, 2019.  

Trainings: New Invoice Training for Local Agencies at Caltrans District Office on Wednesday, 

July 17, 2019. 

Mr. Guerrero mentioned that beginning October 1, 2019, project sponsors must use LAPM Form 

5-A to invoice for federal-aid projects. Agencies will no longer be able to use Billing 

Summaries. You can find the form on the Local Assistance website.  

Active Transportation Program Training- Two-day training will be held on August 19-20, 2019 

at Sacramento State University.  
 

10. General Discussion / New Business 

- Ms. Mendoza provided a quick update on the SR-78 Glamis Feasibility Study. The project is 

moving forward and ICTC is leading the study along with Caltrans. Ms. Mendoza reminded 

everyone of the next TAC meeting on July 25, 2019. 

 

11. Meeting adjourned at 11:18 a.m.    
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C. 5310 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 

5310 Grant Program for Elderly and Disabled 

Transportation Services FY 2018-20 – ICTC grant 

application 
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

 

July 19, 2019 

 

 

 

Robert Amparano, Chairman  

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

1405 N. Imperial Avenue, Suite 1 

El Centro, CA  92243 

 

 

 SUBJECT: Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Grant Program for 

Elderly and Disabled Transportation Services FY 2018-20 – ICTC grant 

application 

 

 

Dear Commission Members: 

 

Caltrans administers a federal grant program primarily designed for non-profit agencies to acquire 

vehicles and other related equipment in support of social service and transit services.   The program 

is designed for non-profit agencies that provide, or are capable of providing social services 

transportation. It is first competitive locally and then again on a statewide basis. 

 

Caltrans has announced a call for projects for the  FY 2018-20 FTA 5310 Grant program. 

Historically, the FTA 5310 program was limited to rolling stock bus purchases and replacements. 

But the program is continuing to include funding for operations expenses and mobility management 

program functions. Approximately $300,000 is available per year, for the three year period.  

 

It is staff’s recommendation to continue our Regional Mobility Coordination program and submit a 

funding request for a second time, one (1) application for FTA 5310 funding. The applications are 

due to Caltrans no later than September 6, 2019. The grant approval process is expected to be 

completed by Caltrans in approximately March 2020.  

 

The funding is anticipated to cover the loaded cost of staff and activities to maintain the Regional 

Mobility Coordination Program. The grant amount to be applied for will be around $400,00 for two 

(2) year period.  

 

 
CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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Robert Amparano, Chairman    (2)     July 19, 2019   

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

    

 

 

The Regional Mobility Coordinator position and one proposed administrative staff that will be 

responsible to assist the implementation in the following programs: 

 

1. Continue the implementation of the consultant prepared 2014 Human Services – Public 

Transit Coordinated Plan, which included  to using a  bilingual Mobility Coordinator to 

bridge the gap between current public transit service providers, human service agencies, 

social service agencies and the senior citizen and disabled communities of Imperial 

County.    

  

2. Continue the implementation of the recommendations that the consultant prepared, 2014 

ADA Certification and Eligibility Process, Demand Management Project. This includes 

the eligibility and certification process for the Americans with disabilities paratransit 

service known as IVT Access. 

 

3. Continue to promote, facilitate, educate, and help streamline transition between 

transportation services particularly for seniors and people with disabilities including 

scheduling mobility training.    

 

The Management Committee met on July 10, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for 

their review and approval after public comment, if any: 

 

1. Authorize the Executive Director or his designee to submit an FTA 5310 FY 2018-

20 Grant, execute all required documents and any amendments with the California 

Department of Transportation, in an estimated amount of $400,000 for the funding 

of the Regional Mobility Coordination Program. 

2. Authorize the ICTC Chairperson to sign the attached resolution 

3. Direct staff to forward the FTA 5310 Grant Application and associated 

documentation to the California Department of Transportation. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
MARK BAZA 

Executive Director 

 

 

MB/da/gg 
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RESOLUTION                     OF 

THE IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (ICTC) 
 

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF APPLICATIONS FOR FEDERAL 

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING, WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION FOR ASSISTANCE AS AUTHORIZED BY 49 U.S.C. CHAPTER 53, 

TITLE 23 UNITED STATES CODE; UNDER FTA SECTION 5310, FOR USE WITHIN 

THE REGIONAL COUNTY-WIDE TRANSIT SYSTEM 
 

WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Transportation is authorized to make grants to states through the 

Federal Transit Administration to support capital projects for non-urbanized public transportation systems 

under Section 5310 of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C 9070.1G); and 

 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Department) has been designated by the 

Governor of the State of California to administer Section 5310 grants for transportation projects that 

enhance mobility of seniors and individuals with disabilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, ICTC desires to apply for said financial assistance to permit "mobility management" 

programs to integrate and coordinate existing public transportation services with other transportation 

providers in order to increase the availability of transportation services; and 

 

WHEREAS, ICTC will ensure the programming of the FTA 5310 funds in the Federal Transportation 

Improvement Program (FTIP); and 

 

WHEREAS, ICTC has, to the maximum extent feasible, coordinated with other transportation providers 

and users in the region (including social service agencies); and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the ICTC does hereby authorize 

Executive Director or his designee, to file and execute applications on behalf of ICTC with the Department 

to aid in the financing of capital projects pursuant to Section 5310 of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C 

9070.1G), as amended. 

1. That Executive Director or his designee, is authorized to execute and file all certification of 

assurances, contracts or agreements or any other document required by the Department. 
 

2. That Executive Director or his designee, is authorized to provide additional information as the 

Department may require in connection with the application for the Section 5310 projects. 
 

3. That the Executive Director or his designee, is authorized to submit and approve request for 

reimbursement of funds from the Department for the Section 5310 project(s). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Imperial County Transportation Commission held 

on _________________. 

 
              By: __________________________ 

           Chairman 
 

       ATTEST: 
 

By: _______________________ 

       CRISTI LERMA 

       Secretary to the Commission 
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D. State of Good Repair Grant Program, FY 2019-20 

19
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RESOLUTION #______ 

 

 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE  

REGIONAL ENTITIES APPROVING PROJECT LIST 

FOR THE CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission is an eligible recipient and may 

receive State Transit Assistance funding from the State of Good Repair Program (SGR) now or 

sometime in the future for transit capital projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit capital projects require a local or regional 

implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (2017) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as the 

administrative agency for the SGR; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and 

distributing SGR funds to eligible recipients (local agencies); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission wishes to delegate authorization 

to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to the Executive Director and/or his 

designee; 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission approves the project list for the 

PUC 99313 apportionment. 

 

WHEREAS, the Imperial County Transportation Commission concurs and approves the project 

list from the operators for the PUC 99314 apportionment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Imperial County Transportation 

Commission approves the region’s State of Good Repair project list for FY 19/20.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Imperial County 

Transportation Commission that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and 

requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances document and applicable statutes, 

regulations and guidelines for all SGR funded transit capital projects. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director and/or his 

designee be authorized to execute all required documents of the SGR program and any 

Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
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PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Imperial County Transportation Commission 

held on July 24, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 
        By:         

                        Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
    

 By:   
                
        CRISTI LERMA 
        Secretary to the Commission 
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A.  ICTC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

B. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF  

GOVERNMENTS 

C.  CALTRANS - DISTRICT 11  
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1503 N IMPERIAL AVE SUITE 104 

EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

Memorandum 
 

Date: July 17, 2019 

To: ICTC Committee Members 

From: Mark Baza, Executive Director 

Re: Executive Director’s Report  
 

The following is a summary of the Executive Director’s Report for the ICTC Commission Meeting on July 24, 

2019. 

 
1) Forecast for August Management Committee and/or Commission Meetings: 

1. August meetings are pending need for action items for Commission approval.  

 

2) Assembly Bill 335 (Garcia): In December 2018, staff met with Assemblymember Eduardo Garcia and his staff 

to discuss legislation that would amend ICTC’s authority to include non-transportation programs. Draft 

legislation is starting to go through committees in Sacramento. The goal of the Bill is to give ICTC authority to 

address or carry out non-transportation programs. The Bill was approved on Consent with the Assembly 

Transportation Committee on April 22, 2019, and on Consent with the Senate Transportation Committee on 

June 11, 2019. The Governor signed the Bill on June 26, 2019. AB 335 will become effective in January 2020. 

Staff at the City of El Centro, County Public Works will be meeting to establish transition process for IVRMA 

and SAFE programs.  

 

3) SR-78/Glamis Multiuse Grade Separated Crossing Feasibility Study: The study will analyze and develop 

feasible design alternatives and locations for a Grade Separated Crossing (GSC) for Off-Highway Vehicle 

(OHV) use at or near SR-78 and the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) in Imperial County.  The successful 

consultant will provide conceptual GSC design alternatives, analysis of site alternatives, public/stakeholder 

outreach and cost estimates for construction, operations and maintenance. The Request for Proposal was 

released July 3, 2019. 

 

4) I-8 / Imperial Avenue Interchange Reconstruction: ICTC staff submitted the 2018 State Transportation 

Improvement Plan to the CTC on December 15, 2017. Caltrans is working to complete the right-of-way 

acquisition, utility relocation and final design. As presented to the CTC, the current schedule to begin 

construction is in FY 2019/2020. Mr. Baza presented the STIP recommendations to the CTC at the STIP 

Hearing on January 25, 2018. The 2018 STIP was adopted by CTC at the March 2018 meeting. ICTC staff 

coordinated a meeting with Caltrans and City of El Centro staff to discuss the project schedule of the 

interchange and the Imperial Avenue Extension South projects. The project schedules will be compatible and 

the closure of the I-8/Imperial Avenue Interchange Bridge is scheduled to begin February 2020.    

 

5) Calexico East Port of Entry Bridge Expansion over the All-American Canal Project: The Project proposes 

to widen the bridge over the All-American Canal at the U.S./Mexico border approximately 0.7 miles south of 

State Route (SR) 7. The project proposes to widen the existing structure by adding four-lanes: Two New 

Northbound Auto Lanes and Two New Northbound Commercial Vehicle Lanes. In May 2018, Caltrans and 

ICTC received $3,000,000 from the California Transportation Commission and the Trade Corridor 
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Enhancement Program (TCEP) to complete the Project Approval and Environmental Document (PA/ED) for 

the project.  In June 2018, Caltrans completed a Project Initiation Document (PID). In Fall of 2018, the PA/ED 

phase was initiated by Caltrans, technical studies for the National Environment Policy Act (NEPA) document 

under Federal Highway Administration as the NEPA lead are in progress and is scheduled for completion in 

May 2020. In December, ICTC in partnership with Caltrans was awarded $20 million under the U.S. 

Department of Transportation’s BUILD discretionary grant program to complete the Design-Build construction 

phase.  ICTC proposes to deliver the project under Design-Build process, with ICTC leading the Request for 

Qualifications in Fall 2019 and Request for Proposals in August 2020 for Design and Construction teams. The 

Design-Build phase is scheduled to begin in February 2021.  As described above, NEPA studies are in progress 

and scheduled for approval in May 2020. Upon NEPA approval, ICTC will request authorization for the $20 

million in federal funding and proceed with the Request for Proposals for Design-Build in Fall 2020. 

 
6) State Route 86 (Northbound) Border Patrol Checkpoint: In August 2017 following a year of coordination, 

Caltrans, the County of Imperial and ICTC met with CBP management and operations staff achieved consensus 

for a new conceptual alternative prepared by Caltrans. The LTA Board met on September 27, 2017, staff 

presented the Board with a fund request for $1.3 million from the 5% Regional Highway Set-Aside from the 

Measure D allocations. A Consultant Agreement with AECOM for design and construction engineering was 

approved by the LTA on February 28, 2018. Currently design is underway. A draft of 35% plans were 

completed and submitted for review on October 12, 2018. Input from all stakeholders is still pending to proceed 

with 65% design. A meeting was held on April 23rd at the ICTC offices to review the 65% design. A draft of 

90% plans are scheduled for completion in August 2019.  
 

7) State Route 98 and Cesar Chavez Blvd.: As part of the POE Expansion project, SR-98 and Cesar Chavez 

Boulevard are being widened and improved to serve the expansion to the west. Caltrans’ SR-98 work between 

VV Williams and Ollie Avenue was completed in March 2018. Caltrans is working on a second segment on SR-

98 between Rockwood Avenue and Ollie Avenue is in the design and right-of-way phase and is anticipated to 

begin construction in spring 2020. ICTC and Caltrans submitted a grant application through SB 1 Trade 

Corridor Enhancement Program. The CTC approved $3.4 million from the SB 1 Trade Corridor Enhancement 

Program to complete construction for SR 98. Cesar Chavez Blvd has been completed and open to the public. A 

ribbon cutting ceremony was held on June 26, 2019 at 9 a.m. at Cesar Chavez and 2nd St.  

 
8) FY 2019 Public Transit Fare Analysis: The Request for Proposal for a consultant for the ICTC FY 2019 

Public Transit Fare Analysis was released on March 1, 2019. The project is for professional services to develop 

a Public Transit Fare Pricing Analysis. This planning document is expected to provide recommendations for the 

current fares/fee structure and media for the four public transit services under the Imperial Valley Transit brand for 

the next three to five years. The award recommendation was approved at the May 22, 2019 Commission 

meeting. AECOM was selected to complete the Analysis. A project kick-off meeting was held on June 20, 2019. 
 

9) FY 2019 IVT, IVT ACCESS, IVT RIDE and IVT MedTrans Public Transit Services Projects: The four 

Request for Proposals for the continuation of the four public transit services were released on March 27, 2019. 

The project is for professional services to continue the fixed route bus system and three paratransit services 

currently in place for the next three to five years. Recommendations will go to the Commission in July.  

   
10) Federal Triennial Review:  The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) is conducting a Triennial Review of the 

Imperial County Transportation Commission in early 2019. The review determines whether a grant recipient 

and its subrecipients are administering its FTA-funded programs in accordance with 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, 

Federal transit law provisions. It assesses the recipient’s management practices and program implementation to 

ensure that the programs are administered in accordance with FTA requirements and are meeting program 

objectives. Grant subrecipients that may be inlucded in this cycle include the Cities of Brawley, El Centro and 

Imperial for the transfer terminal projects. Site visits are scheduled for October 2019. 

 
11) SR-186 Bridge Replacement over the All American Canal:  Caltrans has led a feasibility study for the 

replacement of the SR-186 Bridge over the All American Canal. The stakeholders that have been involved in 

this effort include the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BOR), the Imperial Irrigation District (IID), Caltrans and 

ICTC. As a follow-up, BOR is moving forward with their commitment to issue a media release regarding the 
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future public closure of the bridge carrying SR-186 over the All-American Canal. The BOR anticipates issuing 

the media release in 1-3 weeks requesting for Caltrans to provide a new public crossing by 2025 to ensure 

public access is maintained. 

 
12) Imperial Mexicali Binational Alliance Meeting: The IMBA meeting was held on July 11, 2019 at the CDEM 

office in the City of Mexicali. The next IMBA meeting is scheduled for September 12, 2019.  

 
13) 2018 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program:  The Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP), created 

by Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Beall, Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), provides approximately $300 million annually for 

infrastructure improvements on federally designated Trade Corridors of National and Regional Significance, on 

the Primary Freight Network, and along other corridors that have a high volume of freight movement.  ICTC in 

partnership with Caltrans and the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) were successful in 

receiving TCEP funds for Advanced Technology Corridors at the California-Mexico Ports of Entry (POE).  The 

goal project is to implement Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) strategies that will improve border travel 

delays. Some of the ITS strategies will include Bluetooth and Wi-Fi readers to help track vehicle delays, as well 

as implement changeable message signs on State Routes to inform border travelers of POE delays. Caltrans will 

serve as the implementing agency of this project and has an estimated completion date of early 2020. Caltrans 

has initiated the environmental phase and preliminary design of the project. TCEP funds will be used in 

collaboration with the BUILD grant award for the design and construction phases.  
 

14) State Legislation for Transportation Funding – SB 1 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

(RMRA):  $1.5 Billion annually will go to cities and counties for local road improvements. The following are 

projected annual revenues of RMRA for the Cities and the County of Imperial for FY 2018/2019. This list of 

projects for all cities and the county can also be found on the ICTC website at: 

http://www.imperialctc.org/senate-bill-1/  

 

The following is a list of projects funded by SB1 for FY 2018-2019. 

Agency Project 

Brawley Rehabilitation of Legion Street from Highway 86 to Evelyn Street 

Brawley Street Rehabilitation – Phase 11 

Calexico Cesar Chavez Boulevard Improvement 

Calexico De Las Flores Street Improvement 

Calexico Second Street Bridge 

Calipatria Freeman Street Rehabilitation between Brown and Commercial Avenues 

El Centro 2018 Streets Overlay and Rehabilitation Project 

Holtville Citywide Pavement Rehabilitation Project 

Imperial  Storm Drain Installation – Northwest Quadrant of City – Continuing 

Imperial County  Includes a total of 70 road improvement projects. List can be found on the 

ICTC website here. 

Westmorland North H Street Improvements 

Westmorland Street Rehabilitation Program – Phase 2  

Caltrans/ICTC Calexico East Port of Entry Truck Crossing Improvements 

Caltrans  State Route 111 from State Route 98 to Ross Avenue near Calexico 

Caltrans  State Route 98 from Rockwood Avenue to east of Cole Road near Calexico 

Caltrans  Bridges on Interstate 8 and State Route 86, 98, 11 and 186 

Caltrans  State Route 86 from I Street to Brandt Road near Brawley  

Caltrans  State Route 86 south of B Street to Martin Road near Westmorland 

 

Below are the projected annual revenues for FY 2019/2020.  On May 1, 2019 a list was submitted to the CTC. 

All Imperial County cities and the county are required to submit their list of projects in order to be eligible for 

funding distribution.  

 

Agency 

RMRA Amount 

FY 2019-2020 
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Brawley $453,796 
Calexico $681,911 
Calipatria $127,530 
El Centro $766,589 
Holtville $107,602 
Imperial $320,638 
Westmorland $38,483 
County of Imperial $7,501,204 

TOTAL $9,997,753* 
  

*Estimate source is from the California League of Cities dated January 22, 2019 - 

http://californiacityfinance.com/LSR1901.pdf  
 

15) Rio Vista and Pioneers Memorial Hospital Bus Stops: ICTC has engaged in several discussions with the 

City of Brawley Staff regarding the potential relocation of the existing bus stops along Rio Vista Avenue/SR78 

and at Pioneers Memorial Hospital. Caltrans recently completed improvements to SR 78 and provided on street 

concrete bus pads with an approximate value of $80,000. ICTC recently met with the City of Brawley Staff to 

discuss possibly incorporating the relocation of the bus stop at Pioneers Memorial Hospital as part of an 

upcoming City of Brawley capital project.  

 

16) 2018 ICTC Bus Stop Bench and Shelter Inventory: 2018 ICTC Bus Stop Bench and Shelter Inventory: The 

Project Consultant team Kimley Horn and Associates, and Agency Stakeholders from ICTC, Brawley, 

Calexico, El Centro and Imperial met on January 31, 2018 to review and discuss the current status of the ICTC 

Bus Stop Inventory, Signage Replacement and Technology Assessment Project. The items reviewed included 

the consultant prepared Bus Stop Inventory, Asset Condition Report, ADA Assessment Report, Bus Stop Usage 

Priority List and Bus Stop Signage installation parameters and requirements. ICTC and member agency staff 

have worked together to complete the priority list for implementation and pursuit of funding. Bus stop signage 

specifications with specific route information have been finalized. The consultant and staff are working towards 

finalizing the Technology Memorandum which will provide ICTC with possible technology solutions for the 

fixed route bus system. Staff anticipates providing a presentation of project materials at the September 2019 

commission meeting. 

 

17) SCAG’s Sustainability Grant Program – Imperial County Regional Climate Action Plan: ICTC was 

awarded a SCAG Sustainable Planning Grant to develop a Regional Climate Action Plan.  ICTC staff will work 

in collaboration with SCAG staff to develop and release a request for proposal to select a consultant that will 

develop the Regional Climate Action Plan.  ICTC will serve as the day to day project manager and SCAG staff 

will serve as the administrative project manager. The goal of the project is to develop a regional framework for 

addressing Green House Gas (GHG) emissions for a Regional Climate Action Plan that allows each local 

agency to customize and fit into the context of the community each jurisdiction serves, that can be used at the 

local level in the development of jurisdiction – specific Climate Action Plans (CAPs).  ICTC and SCAG have 

completed the consultant selection process. A kick-off meeting was held on June 28, 2019 at the ICTC offices.   
 
18) Calexico Intermodal Transportation Center (ITC): A new Intermodal Transportation Center in the City of 

Calexico has been part of ICTC’s long range transit planning.  The new Calexico ITC will serve as a regional 

mobility hub that will accommodate bus bays for Imperial Valley Transit in addition to the City of Calexico’s 

private transit operators, taxis and farm labor buses. ICTC received a Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

federal program fund to complete the environmental and design plans of the new Calexico ITC. ICTC staff is in 

the process of completing the contract award for a consultant firm that will complete the environmental and 

design phase. Currently, ICTC staff is completing the Caltrans award review process with multiple Caltrans’ 

departments. The ICTC Board adopted the agreement with Psomas on September 26, 2018. Environmental 

phase is in progress with consultant team and agency partners, including the City of Calexico, Caltrans and 

ICTC. Preliminary site analysis has been completed and a meeting was held at the Psomas office on April 3, 

2019. The project is currently in the environmental phase.  
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19) Heber Bus Stop & Pedestrian Access Improvements on State Route 86:  The community of Heber has had 

a need to improve pedestrian and bus stop access along State Route 86.  The ICTC Commission granted the use 

of Regional Set-Aside Local Transportation Authority (LTA) funds for the project.  Caltrans has served as the 

project lead; the first phase was recently completed in November 2017. Phase 1 included bench, bus shelter and 

ADA access improvements.  Phase 2 was recently completed in mid-June 2018 and consisted of curb and 

sidewalks improvements from Parkyns Ave to Heber Ave. Phase 3 will also have curb and sidewalk 

improvements and is located between Heffernan to Parkyns Ave. ICTC participated in a Heber Community 

Outreach event together with County Public Works and led by Supervisor Plancarte. The County of Imperial 

discussed sidewalk pavement projects, and ICTC gave transit updates and a status of the SR-86 improvements. 

The Phase 3 construction improvements have been completed and project is nearing completion and closeout. 

A ribbon cutting will be scheduled soon.  

 

20) State Legislation for Transportation Funding – SB 1 2018 Local Partnership Program (LPP):  The 2018 

Local Partnership Program is comprised of formulaic program and competitive programs.  In FY2017/2018 

total amount available statewide is $200M and distribution is 50/50 for both formulaic and competitive 

programs. The formulaic program share distributions for the Local Partnership Program were presented at the 

CTC meeting in December 6-7, 2017.  During the meeting the CTC Commission took action and approved the 

distribution of funds for the formulaic portion, the funding share for Imperial County in FY2017/2018 is 

$538,000.  For FY2017/2018, no projects were submitted for the formulaic program and funds will be rolled 

over to FY2018/2019. Currently, ICTC staff is working with the local agencies to submit project forms 

accordingly. Deadline to submit to ICTC is Friday, February 15, 2019 at end of day. All eligible projects will 

be forwarded to CTC for a May 2019 allocation vote.  

 

The following is the list of projects for Imperial County:  

 
 

The following is the link to the 2019 Local Partnership Program guidelines: 

http://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/lpp/docs/062719+Amended_LPP%20Guidelines.pdf    

 

21) State and Federal funding Obligations: Beginning October 1, 2018, agencies are allowed to move forward 

with request for authorization (RFA) for Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ), Regional Surface 

Transportation Program (RSTP) and Active Transportation Program (ATP) programmed in FY 2018/2019.  

  

FY2018/2019 Project List 

Agency Project Name 

LPP Formulaic Funds

Local Match Total Cost

Proposed CTC 

Programming 

Date 

Calexico

Scaroni Road 

Improvements 305,000$                               550,000$                855,000$                      May 19/20

Calipatria

Calipatria Date Street 

Sidewalk Improvement 

Project 41,000$                                   $                  41,000  $                        82,000 May 19/20

County

Overlay of Picacho 

Road from 

Winterhaven Road to 

Quechan Drive 523,000$                               523,000$                1,046,000$                   May 19/20

Imperial

Aten/Clark Road 

Improvements 154,000$                               327,000$                481,000$                      May 19/20

Brawley

2020 Legion Street 

Improvements 209,000$                               209,000$                418,000$                      May 20/21

El Centro

Dogwood Road from 

Villa Road to 

Commercial Avenue 339,000$                               339,000$                678,000$                      May 20/21

Holtville

Orchard Road/Cedar 

Avenue 60,000$                                   $                  60,000 120,000$                      May 20/21

Local Partnership Program (LPP) Programing Date
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Agency Project Name 

Funding 

Type Phase 

Federal 

Amount in 

FY2018/19 

Local 

Match 

Total Phase 

Cost 

 

 

Status  

Brawley 

Paving of dirt 

road Wildcat 

Dr. from S. 

Western Ave. 

to S. First St. CMAQ CON  $708,000   $92,000   $800,000  

 

 

Completed for 

design. Will 

submit by 

May-June 

Calipatria 

Roadway and 

pedestrian 

improvements 

on N. Brown 

from E. Alamo 

St. to Delta St. 

CMAQ & 

RSTP CON  $958,000   $125,000  $1,083,000  

 

 

Out to bid 

Mid-Feb 

El Centro  

Imperial Ave. 

Extension 

South   RSTP CON  $653,000  

 

$3,197,000   $3,850,000  

 
CON-FTIP 
Amendment  

Imperial 

County 

Heber Ave. 

from Hwy 86 

to Correll Rd. 

and S. of Hwy 

86 to Fawcett 

Rd.  EARMARK CON 

 

$1,017,000   $0   $1,017,000  

 

 

 

ROW 

Certification. 

Submit by 

Mid-March 

Imperial 

County 

Conservation 

easement, 

access 

improvements, 

parking 

facilities at 

Desert 

Museum EARMARK CON  $720,000   $0  $720,000  

 

 

 

PS&E 

completed. 

Will submit 

by end of 

March  

Imperial 

County  

Rio Vista St. in 

Community of 

Seeley CMAQ CON  $145,000   $19,000   $162,000 

 

 

Working with 

consultant. 

They advertise 

twice.  

ICTC & 

Caltrans 

Calexico Est 

POE Truck 

Crossing 

Improvement SB1 TCE ENG 

 

$3,000,000   $0  $3,000,000  

 

 

 

SB-1 $$$ has 

been obligated  

ICOE  

Project Ride, 

Walk, Learn ATP CON $224,000 $0 $224,000 

 

 

Obligate by 

March/April 

Westmorland 

Paving of dirt 

roads H St. & 

8th St. segments CMAQ CON $350,000 $45,000 $395,000 

 

 

Project 

Complete 

 Regional Total FY2018/2019   

 

$11,251,000 

 

 

22) Partnerships with IVEDC:  

 

a) Southern Border Broadband Consortium (SBBC): ICTC in partnership with IVEDC received a California 

Advanced Services Regional Consortia Grant award of $450,000 from their Rural and Regional Consortia 
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program. The grant covers a 3-year period. ICTC is fiscal agent and developed an MOU which defines 

roles and responsibilities (Audits, Administration and Project Management) for ICTC and IVEDC. Since 

the projects approval, IVEDC staff Sean Wilcock designed a new logo for SBBC to assist the clarity in 

larger marketing materials. An update was presented to the Commission at the August 2018 meeting.     

Currently, the project is in year two of the contract. In year two/quarter two, Ms. Barrett began working 

with other consortiums on the Caltrans Strategic Corridors Plan. SBBC submitted corridors that would 

need better broadband sources in Imperial and San Diego Counties. A new staff was hired during this time; 

Mr. Rene Pollard has been attending meetings with Ms. Barrett since September. An Area Agency on Aging 

(AAA) Board Meeting was attended in October, along with another AAA event in Bombay Beach; and 

SBBC is planning to attend more AAA events to assist seniors attain internet access in their homes. The 

SBBC staff designed a USB with both their logo and AAA’s logo to hand out to seniors when they complete 

the “internet needs questionnaire” and has worked as a great incentive. Quarter two will concluded with a 

quarterly meeting on February 8th at the Caltrans District 11 offices. Staff continues to reach out to 

schools and is scheduled to attend the Calipatria School District Resource Fair this Spring.   

 

b) The Brawley Transit Corridor Brownfield Assessment: ICTC in partnership with IVEDC received a U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Communitywide Assessment Grant award of 

$300,000 from the Environmental Protection Agency’s Brownfields Assessment Program. This assessment 

will be focused along the transit circulator route within the 13 mile Imperial Valley Transit’s (IVTs) 

Brawley Gold Line Transit Route and the Brawley Transit Center that serves as the IVTs North Imperial 

County transfer terminal.  The commercial corridors in the target assessment area include over 100 known 

commercial properties and suspected historical gas station sites with known or suspected underground 

tanks in the target area. ICTC will be the fiscal agent and has developed an MOU which will define roles 

and responsibilities (Audits, Administration and Project Management) or ICTC and IVEDC. SCS 

Engineers have initiated early Tasks that include the Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) and project 

management plan as required by EPA. The Steering Committee consisting of agency partners and 

stakeholders met on August 22, 2018. The draft QAPP is nearing completion. The first community 

outreach meeting was held on October 11, 2018. The consultant and IVEDC presented an overview of the 

project and the opportunities available for property owners to consider participating and requesting Phase 1 

or 2 Brownfield Assessments. Currently we are processing 4 Property Eligibility applications with the 

Dept. of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) which will be later submitted to the Environment Protect Agency 

for final approval. All 4 of these properties are seeking to redevelop or sell properties for redevelopment 

within the project’s subject area. These properties will be processed for Phase 1 and potentially Phase 2 

Environmental Site Assessments to clear them of contamination concern or evaluate them for site cleanup 

planning if necessary. 

 

23) California HERO Program: The California Hero Program was launched in April 2014 in Imperial County 

with ICTC as the administering agency. A copy of the program activity report up to June 2019 is attached for 

your review.  

 

24) Community of Niland Bus Stop Bench and Shelter Request: The ICTC submitted a formal request to the 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) District 11 requesting their assistance in identifying a 

location for a bus stop bench and shelter in the Community of Niland along State Route 111 (SR-111). The 

shelter has been installed in an existing parking lot on the east side of SR-111.   
 

25) Funding for Phase II of the Calexico West Port of Entry: As previously noted, Congress authorized $98 

million for Phase 1. The U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) began construction for Phase 1 in 

December 2015 with completion now scheduled for July 2018. Phase 2A was awarded in the amount of 

$191million and will include additional northbound vehicle lanes, permanent southbound inspection, new 

administration building, and employee parking. Funding for phase 2B has not been secured and work will 

include demolition of the old port building and construction of the new pedestrian building. 

 

26) Westshores Transit Opportunities: As part of the Short Range Transit Plan, ICTC has explored connection 

opportunities with Sunline Transit who serves the Coachella Valley region. ICTC and Sunline Transit have 

discussed pursuing grant opportunities for interregional transit services to/from Westshores and Coachella. 

ICTC and Sunline Transit continue to have regular dialogue about the potential opportunities most recently 
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engaging in discussions in January 2019. ICTC will be implementing an adjustment to the IVT Ride Westshores 

service to provide service to Eisenhower Medical Center on Bob Hope Drive and facilities ¾ of a mile from 

Highway 111 between Eisenhower Medical Center and Avenue 52 in Coachella. The service will operate every 

other Tuesday and reservations will be required. Service began on April 16, 2019. Staff will be completing 

outreach services in the Westshores area to inform the public of the change to the service. 

 

27) California-Baja California Binational Region: A Fresh Look at Impacts of Border Delays: Building upon 

previous Caltrans, SANDAG, and ICTC studies, this project will refine the economic models developed to 

assess economic impacts of delays at the land ports of entry (POEs) between the San Diego and Imperial 

Counties region and Baja California, Mexico, on the border region economies. It will also estimate greenhouse 

gas (GHG) emissions of passenger and commercial vehicles due to northbound and southbound border delays 

at the six California POEs, and propose strategies to reduce GHG emissions at the border region. Lastly, 

extensive outreach to government agencies, local border communities, and private sector stakeholders was 

conducted.  A final is report is scheduled to be completed in the summer of 2019.     

 

28) Meetings attended on behalf of ICTC: 

• June 13, 2019 – Imperial County-Mexicali Air Quality Workgroup meeting in Calexico, CA 

• June 13, 2019 – CalVans Board Meeting (teleconference) 

• June 19, 2019 – Self-Help Counties Coalition (SHCC) Directors Meeting in San Diego, CA  

• June 19, 2019 – CalWorks Assistive Technology & Resource Fair (attended by Mobility Coordination 

staff) 

• June 20, 2019 – Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) General Assembly in Temecula, 

CA  

• June 21, 2019 – Regional CTC CEO’s / SCAG Meeting in Los Angeles, CA 

• June 24, 2019 – Coachella Valley Association of Governments (CVAG) General Assembly in Rancho 

Mirage, CA  

• June 24, 2019 – IVT Ride sign-ups at the Valley Convalescent Center in El Centro, CA (attended by 

Mobility Coordination staff) 

• June 25, 2019 – Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for Cesar Chavez Rd. project in Calexico, CA 

• June 26, 2019 – ICTC Commission and LTA Meetings in El Centro, CA  

• June 27, 2019 – ICTC Technical Advisory Committee Meeting at the ICTC Offices in El Centro, CA  

• June 27, 2019 – IVT Ride sign-ups at the Offices of Emergency Services in Heber, CA (attended by 

Mobility Coordination staff) 

• June 28, 2019 – ICTC Special Commission Meeting at the ICTC Offices in El Centro, CA 

• June 28, 2019 – IVT Ride sign-ups at the Heber Community Center in Heber, CA (attended by Mobility 

Coordination staff) 

• July 11, 2019 – Imperial Mexicali Binational Alliance Meeting in Mexicali  

• July 18, 2019 – Power Outage Tabletop Exercise at Office of Emergency Services (EOC) in Heber, CA 

(attended by Mobility Coordination staff) 
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Type of Projects

Member Launch Date

 Eligible 

Housing 

Units * 

Total Applications 

Received

Applications 

Approved

 Approved 

Amount 

Funded 

Projects

 Funded 

Amount 

Jobs 

Created*** Energy Water Renewable

Solar kW 

Installed

Annual kWh 

Saved

Annual CO2 

Reduced (Tons)

Brawley 4/14/2014 5,762 338 203 $5,606,009 113 $1,538,328 14 130 0 39 97 1,139,907 296

Calexico 3/24/2015 7,439 729 408 $13,198,842 243 $3,125,323 28 236 4 98 250 2,789,766 713

Calipatria 3/24/2015 764 11 5 $134,632 5 $61,615 1 6 0 0 0 49,993 12

El Centro 5/23/2014 9,374 580 372 $11,289,659 205 $2,795,017 25 219 9 64 178 2,187,499 562

Holtville 3/24/2015 1,284 73 49 $1,310,241 25 $319,008 3 23 0 10 18 222,189 58

Imperial 6/10/2015 5,207 250 180 $6,080,190 103 $1,696,352 15 100 19 47 133 1,096,317 286

Westmoreland

Imperial County Unincorporated 11/14/2014 10,119 293 169 $5,485,864 95 $1,405,100 13 102 3 32 79 983,062 252

Total 39,949 2,274 1,386 43,105,437$         789 10,940,744$     99 816 35 290 755 8,468,733 2,180

** Participation rate based off of funded projects

*** 1 job for every $117,000 invested.

Program Activity through June 30, 2019

Inactive

California HERO Activity Report
Imperial County Transportation Commission
Launch Date through June 30, 2019
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Memorandum 

Date: July 24th, 2019 

To: ICTC Commission Meeting 

From: David Salgado, Regional Affairs Officer (RAO) 

Re: Southern California Association of Government’s Report 

 
   

 
The following is a summary of the SCAG Executive Director’s Report and/or Federal and State Legislature Staff Report for 

the Imperial County Transportation Commission Meeting July 24th, 2019.  

 

1. RHNA Subcommittee Meeting - July 22, 2019: Please be advised that the July 1 RHNA 

Subcommittee meeting has been moved to Monday, July 22, 2019 10 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 

Videoconferencing is available at the SCAG Imperial, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, and 

Ventura offices, and at the City of Palmdale and South Bay Cities COG offices. Due to limited 

capacity at the Orange County location, please RSVP if you plan to attend there to ensure space 

availability. 

 

We will send a notification when the agenda is posted. View-only webcasting is also available on a 

limited first come, first serve basis. Details about videoconferencing, teleconferencing, and 

registration for webcasting will be listed on the second page of the agenda. For more information about 

RHNA or to view videos of prior RHNA Subcommittee meetings, please visit 

http://www.scag.ca.gov/rhna. 

 

2. RHNA 101 Webinar: Monday July 29th, 2019, 10:00am to 11:00am. The webinar will cover the 

basics of the RHNA process and an opportunity to ask questions via web text. Please register online 

http://www.scag.ca.gov/programs/Pages/Housing.aspx  (SCAG RHNA Website) 

 

3. SCAG GO-HUMAN Marketing Materials: SCAG’s Active Transportation Department has secured 

funding from the state Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) for another round of Go-Human advertising 

materials development and provision. If any agencies or stakeholders are interested in having materials 

provided for promotion of safe walking and biking and driver awareness, there is a simple order form 

process for requesting materials. SCAG is looking for any creative ways to incorporate the materials  
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into any of your facilities. The materials are created and provided to you at no cost. SCAG is working 

with a consultant to incorporate logos of those agencies which are interested as well as develop the 

signage to fit any specific marketing spaces or opportunities you may have available.  

 

4. SCAG Safety Workshop (LOCAL): Take action to create safer streets by joining SCAG at a traffic 

safety workshop this August. Four workshops will be held at locations across the region, offering 

attendees the opportunity to hear from traffic safety experts and learn proven tactics for reducing 

traffic-related fatalities and serious injuries.  

The program will feature expert panels and highlight successful strategies for improving traffic safety, 

centering on the essential elements of building safer streets: Education, Enforcement, Engineering, 

Evaluation, Equity, and Encouragement. SCAG will also provide a menu of free resources for partners 

to use, including safety signage, programming modules and a kit of parts for temporary safety 

infrastructure demonstrations. 

Who Should Attend? 

• City Planning Staff 

• Public Works Directors 

• Traffic Engineers 

• Public Outreach Officers 

• Public Health Staff 

• Anyone in a position to move traffic safety initiatives forward 

 

Workshop Takeaways 
 

• Best practices information and technical assistance for creating safer streets and reducing 

rates of traffic fatalities and serious injuries 

• A preliminary work plan including next steps  

• A resource guide to region-specific funding sources and programs to support implementation 

of the work plan 

 

Imperial County Workshop 

August 7, 10:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

El Centro Caltrans Office, 1102 Montenegro Way, El Centro, CA. 92243 

RSVP: https://imperialsafetyworkshop.eventbrite.com 

 

5. SCAG WILL BE DARK FOR JULY 2019: No Regional Council Meeting on July 4th due to the 

holiday.  

34

https://imperialsafetyworkshop.eventbrite.com/


 

6. SCAG August Regional Council/Joint Policy Committee Meeting: Upon returning from a month 

off, the SCAG Regional Council will hold a Joint Policy Committee (JPC) meeting in addition to its 

regularly scheduled Regional Council and Policy Committee meetings. The current meeting date is 

Thursday August 1st, 2019. 

 

7. CONNECT SO-CAL Website: The official website is now live for Connect SoCal, SCAG’s 

Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy. The newly launched page, 

connectsocal.org, offers a clear and user-friendly way to get updates about the ongoing process of 

building the plan. Check it out! 

 

This website will be a cornerstone of public participation for Connect SoCal, a plan that provides 

Southern California with a comprehensive transportation vision through 2045. Plan development takes 

many years to complete and involves working with six county transportation commissions, 15 sub-

regional organizations, 191 cities, numerous other stakeholder organizations and the public. Adoption 

of a final plan is anticipated in April 2020. 

 

8. SCAG Sustainable Communities Program (SCP) 2019: On Thursday March 7, 2019 the SCAG 

Regional Council (RC) approved project submittals for award under the SPG Call for Projects. 2 

projects were selected in Imperial County. The first project awarded came from the City of Calexico 

and will fund a “Rockwood Promenade” project at 2nd St and Rockwood. This will be a temporary 

“quick build” project implemented over a short time frame to highlight the potential for a promenade. 

The second award was to ICTC for the creation of a Regional Active Transportation Plan that will be 

used to compliment the Long Range Planning process moving forward.  

 

9. Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) Working Group: As a part of the upcoming RHNA 

Cycle SCAG President Alan Wapner has appointed 2 elected officials from each SCAG county to 

participate in the SCAG RHNA Working Group. The group will meet periodically to ensure 

participation from each county throughout the RHNA development process. Imperial Counties 

representative is City of Holtville Councilman, ICTC Commissioner, and SCAG Regional Council 

and Policy Committee Member Jim Predmore with Councilman Bill Hodge as the alternate. Please 

feel free to contact SCAG RAO David Salgado with any questions regarding RHNA or reach out to 

your local delegate to carry any concerns to the presidents sub-committee. We appreciate everyone’s 

responsiveness to requests to provide the most accurate and current information for the RHNA process. 
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Date: July 19, 2019 
To: ICTC Commissioner’s 
From:  Cory Binns, Caltrans District 11, District Director 
Re: District Director’s Report 

 

 
 

The following is the California Department of Transportation, District 11 report for the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) Commissioner’s meeting of July 24, 
2019: 

 
1. Project Updates: 

 
Please see maps at end of report for project level detail. 

 

 
 

2. Construction: 
 

Interstate 8 (I-8) Continuously Reinforced Concrete Pavement Project (CRCP): 
 

I-8 CRCP Project was divided into five segments with Segments 1-3 and 5 being complete. The 
entire project is scheduled for completion in 2019. 

 
Segment 4:  Work on this section is coming to completion.  For Section Two of Segment 4, the eastbound traffic, which is 
currently utilizing the westbound lanes, will be switched back to the eastbound lanes at the end of July.  Also, the 
westbound traffic will be switched back to the westbound lanes, from Evan Hewes Highway, at the end of August.  The 
detour will be removed in September.
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3. Traffic Operations: 
 

SR-86/Customs & Border Protection Checkpoint Expansion 
 

The USBP has informed us that Congress has stopped all checkpoint improvement projects across the nation.  All 
resources are now focused on illegal migrant efforts along the southern border. 

 
SR-186 Speed Reduction 

 
The Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) had a finding to upgrade the bridge rail at the All American 
Check Bridge on SR-186. While the BOR works on the design of the improvements, the previous 
speed limit of 40 mph and was reduced to 30 mph to facilitate the safe and orderly movement of 
vehicular traffic on the All American Canal Check Bridge. 

 
The Public Hearing for the speed reductions on the bridge was held on Wednesday, June 26, 2019 in the Imperia l County 
Public Works Office.  Caltrans completed the installation of new “Speed Limit 30” signs on July 5, 2019. 
 

 
4. Planning: 

 
 

SR-78/Glamis Grade Separated Crossing Feasibility Study 
 

Caltrans was successful in obtaining State Planning and Research funds for a feasibility study to 
develop alternatives for a grade separated crossing over the Union Pacific rail line in Glamis. 
ICTC will be the project manager for this study, and it is expected to begin in Fall 2019.   
 
The RFP was released at the beginning of July, with consultant interviews expected in August. 

 
City of Calipatria – Railroad Corridor Multi-Use Bikeway Master Plan 

 
The City of Calipatria was awarded a 2018-2019 Sustainable Communities Planning Grant 
administered by Caltrans for the development of a bikeway plan to connect the easterly area of 
Calipatria to the western side of the City and the development of a safe corridor to cross the 
Union Pacific Railroad. 

 
This Railroad Corridor Multi-Use Master Plan will build upon the Bicycle Master Plan by 
combining Class I and Class II bikeways and providing additional linkages between the 
affected neighborhoods. This will provide the underserved community to the east of the 
railroad tracks with a safer crossing point to reach destinations on the west.   

 
A kick-off meeting was held in early December with the City of Calipatria, KOA 
Corporation (consultant), and Caltrans. The initial outreach was held on March 19, 2019, and 
the next outreach is expected in Fall 2019. This project will be complete in late 2019. 
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5. Senate Bill 1 Projects: 
 

Caltrans is working on one remaining project in Imperial County that is funded through SB1. 
Two other projects involving bridge work and pavement overlays have already been 
completed. 

 
• SR-111 & SR-98 Pavement Overlay - Construction began on September 17, 2018 and is 

expected to be complete in summer 2019. 
 

An additional project which received funding from the CTC for the Design and Environmental 
phases, is the widening of the bridge over the All American Canal at the Calexico East POE. 
Caltrans is providing design and environmental services for this project. 

 
 
6. Upcoming Projects: 

 
For 2019, there are several projects that have been confirmed in the Caltrans Project Delivery Plan in 
Imperial County. They are: 

 

 

• Culvert rehabilitation on SR-78, from approximately Midway Well to Palo Verde. 
• Construction of the full replacement interchange at I-8 and Imperial Avenue. 
• Widening on SR-98/SR-111, from Ollie to Rockwood. 
• Upgrade curve warning signs along various routes. 
• Paving on SR-86 from the SR-111/SR-86 junction to the City of El Centro. 

 
As these projects move forward to construction, additional information will be provided. 

 

 
 

7. Maintenance: 
 

SR-86 Grinding and Overlay Project; 
 

Maintenance recently completed grinding and overlays various sections of SR-86. Crack sealing 
on SR-86 is expected to be complete in mid-August 2019. 
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8. Local Assistance: 
 

Inactive Projects 
 

“Future Inactive” projects should be billed within the specified and agreed-upon timeframe to 
avoid deobligation of funds. 

 
As of July 11, 2019, the inactive and future inactive list was updated. Action is required by the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission and County of Imperial, as well as the cities of Brawley, Calexico, and Imperial. 

 
The deadline to submit Inactive invoices is August 20, 2019.  District 11 must have complete and accurate invoices 
before this due date to avoid de-obligation of federal funds. 
 
Verify by using the “Inactive” link shown below for exact Inactive Project dates. Note: An invoice 
is not cleared from either the “Inactive” or “Future Inactive” list until paid by the State 
Controller’s Office. Provided Local Agencies adhere to the format described in Chapter 5 of the 
Local Assistance Procedures Manual, invoices are typically paid by check within 60 days after 
receipt (or 50 days if paid through Electronic Funds Transfer). 

 
A complete list of Inactive Projects can be found online.  
 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/Inactiveprojects.htm 
 
June 28, 2019 Deadline: DBE Annual Submittal & ADA Annual Certification Forms: 

 
Just a reminder, both the Local Agency Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Annual 
Submittal Form (Exhibit 9-B) and Local Agency Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Annual 
Certification Form (Exhibit 9-C) were due on June 28, 2019, for the next Federal Fiscal Year 
(October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020) per Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) 
Chapter 9, Sections 9.3 and 9.6. 

 
Note that failure to submit completed forms will result in delays to the processing of any Requests 
for Authorization. 

 
Link to the Local Assistance Procedures Manual: 

 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

 
2016 Repurposed Projects: Need to Program/Obligate ASAP 

 
Funding obligations for projects with 2016 Earmark Repurposing funds must be completed by 
September 30, 2019, or the funds will lapse. Below is the weblink to the FHWA approved list, 
with six projects located in Imperial County. 
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Local Assistance (continued): 
 

Some important items to remember: 

 
• Agencies need to work with the MPO/RTPA (SCAG/ICTC) if the funds still need to be 

programmed this FFY, and require a formal amendment. Funds will be at greater risk of 
lapsing if not properly programmed. Once programmed, Requests for Authorization (the 
E76) must be sent to District 11 Local Assistance before July 1, 2019. 

 
• If an agency plans to designate any of the funds for the Construction phase, the PE phase 

(including NEPA clearance) and R/W certification must be completed prior to the CON 
funding request; otherwise, CON funds will lapse. 

 
Latest “2016 Repurposed Earmark Funds Expiring by 09/30/2019”. (Updated July 1, 2019) - 

 
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-
assistance/documents/earmark/2019/summary-20190701.xlsx  

 
Since the Federal Aid Database System (FADS) tends to shut down prior to the Federal Fiscal 
Year (FFY) end in September, funds must be obligated no later than July/August 2019. 
 
Federal Fiscal Year 2018/19 Requests for Authorization/Obligation Past Due 

 
Every year, California makes a strong and concerted effort to participate in the federal August    
Redistribution (AR) exercise, which has been successful in garnering AR Obligation Authority 
(OA) to help fund projects when the FFY ends. Several conditions affect whether or not California 
projects receive such funding. Demonstrating that agencies from California need project funding 
immediately means that Caltrans received a Request for Authorization and has had enough time to 
enter an E76 request in the Federal Aid Database System. This information will be submitted to 
FHWA as part of the overall AR need for California. 

 
Early RFA submittals minimize delay to obtaining fund authorizations. Please notify the Area 
Engineer of any pending requests. 

 
Division of Local Assistance Listserver Email Subscription 

 
Sign up for a Division of Local Assistance “Listserver” to receive significant updates or additions 
to Local Assistance webpages, including changes to the Local Assistance Procedures Manual 
(LAPM) and Local Assistance Program Guidelines (LAPG), new Office Bulletins and Local 
Programs Procedures, as well as Calls for Projects. 

 
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/other-important-issues/subscribe-to-dla-email-list 
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Local Assistance (continued): 
 

Reminder: 2019 EEO Report Form FHWA-1391: due on August 15, 2019 
 
Pursuant to U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23, Section 230.121 and federal-aid contract requirements, 
contractors are required to report annually on the composition of their workforce by race, gender, and job category. 
Using the federal form FHWA-1391, “Federal-Aid Highway Construction Contractors Annual EEO Report,” prime 
contractors and any lower-tier subcontractors with subcontracts exceeding $10,000 must complete the report for 
work performed during the last full work week of July.  

  
Who is Required to Report 
·     All prime contractors on FHWA-assisted construction contracts, and all related subcontractors with subcontracts 

of $10,000 or more. 
·     A separate FHWA-1391 must be completed by each prime contractor and each related subcontractor that meets the 

reporting threshold. 
  
Reporting Period  
·     Contractors must identify all employees who perform work during all or any part of the last payroll period of July 

2019. 

·     Capture data for employees who worked during the last payroll period in July (July 21 through July 27, 2019). 
  
Reporting Procedure  
·     Local agencies notify their prime contractors of this reporting requirement. 
·     Prime contractors, as well as each subcontractor, report this information to their respective local agency Resident 

Engineer who certifies that the information is correct and complete. 
·     Local agency Resident Engineers send the reports to their respective Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer 

(DLAE) who verifies that the information is complete. 

  
Links 
·     FHWA-1391 Form 
·     Instructions for completing FHWA-1391 
  
The form must be completed entirely to be considered satisfactory.  Please email completed FHWA-1391 forms to 
Cathy Ly at Cathy.ly@dot.ca.gov by August 15, 2019.  For all questions on the FHWA-1391 reporting process, please 
contact Cathy Ly at Cathy.Ly@dot.ca.gov or Leah Van Dyne at Leah.VanDyne@dot.ca.gov or 916-324-0784. 

 
2019 Earmark Project Repurposing: due on August 16, 2019 
 
Another round of earmark repurposing is beginning.  To be e ligible for repurposing, an earmark must have been  

designated on or before September 30, 2008, and must be either: 
 
·     Less than 10 percent of earmark funds obligated, or 
·     Completed and closed if more than 10 percent earmark funds are obligated.  
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Local Assistance (continued): 
 

To receive repurposed earmark funds, a project will need to be e ligible for the Surface Transportation Block Grant 

Program, and be within 50 miles of the original earmark location.  
 
The deadline for local/regional agencies to submit requests to the Caltrans District 11 Local Area Engineer is 
August 16, 2019.  For more information, updated earmark lists, links, and instructions, visit the Earmark 
Repurposing webpage. https://dot.ca.gov/programs/ local-assistance/projects/earmark-repurposing 

 
Division of Local Assistance Blog (LAB) 

 
A Caltrans Local Assistance Blog (LAB) provides clarity on issues and contributes to the 
successful delivery of transportation projects using federal resources. Categories covered by 
the LAB include: Subsidized Classes for Local Agencies, Policy/Procedures, Program 
Guidelines, Training, Environmental Review, and Right of Way. 

 
http://www.localassistanceblog.com 

 
September 11, 2019 – Southern California Local Assistance Management Meeting (SCLAMM) 
 
Caltrans welcomes the FHWA, as well as Local Public Agency staff in regions represented by SCAG and SANDAG, to 
attend SCLAMM. 

 
More information will be provided prior to the meeting (see attached reminder). 
 
Location: Caltrans District 12 Traffic Management Center, 6681 Marine Way, Irvine, CA  92618 
 
R.S.V.P. by August 28: Mirna Beshay, Caltrans District 12, at Mirna.Beshaytadrous@dot.ca.gov 
 
Training 

 
Active Transportation Program Training: 

 

This two-day training will be held on August 19-20, 2019 at Sacramento State University. 

 
The Active Transportation Program Symposium is a two-day event co-hosted by the California 
Transportation Commission and Caltrans. The goals of the Symposium are to share and gather 
information on relevant active transportation topics and issues, as well as allow stakeholders to 
connect with the State in an alternate setting. The symposium will showcase inspiring speakers, 
engaging panel sessions, and provide networking opportunities. Topics will include benefits, equity, 
safety and non-infrastructure projects. Please see attached flyer for additional details 
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Local Assistance (continued): 
 

Subsidized Classes for Local Agencies 
 

The California Local Technical Assistance Program is a jointly funded effort between Caltrans 
and the FHWA to provide local governments with training, information, technology and 
direct assistance to help transportation infrastructure. Upcoming courses are listed at the 
following link: 

 
http://registration.techtransfer.berkeley.edu/wconnect/ShowSchedule.awp?&Mode=GRO 
UP&Group=:FULL&Title=Complete+Listing 

 
Mandatory Requirements 
 
Methodology Update: 

 
For all federal contracts (consultant and construction) advertised or authorized since 
October 1, 2018, local agencies must use the updated Local Assistance Procedures Manual 
Exhibit 9-D template to calculate Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goals. 
 
Download Updated Exhibit 9-D  
 
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-
assistance/documents/lapm/c09/09de.xlsx 
 
Background: On July 31, 2018, Caltrans submitted a Proposed Overall DBE Goal and 
Methodology of 17.6% for 2018-19 through 2020-21 to the Federal Highway Administration. 
California must make efforts to achieve this target on all DBE commitments effective October 1, 
2018. Updates to the DBE contract goal methodology now require federal local assistance 
contracts to base goals upon seven DBE firms per subcontractable task and factoring the total 
DBE work made available by 80%. Supply and trucking component calculations remain 
unchanged at 12% and 10%, respectively, for all tasks that are not determined to be sub- 
contractable. The latest Local Assistance Procedures Manual forms can be found at 

 
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/forms/local-assistance-procedures-manual-forms 

 
Title VI Nondiscrimination Program 

 
A reminder that local agencies shall comply with all Title VI requirements. See LAPM 
Section 9.2, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Related Statutes: 

 
Title VI and the additional nondiscrimination requirements are applicable to all programs and 
activities administered by a recipient, in addition to programs receiving federal financial 
assistance, due to the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987. Nondiscrimination provisions 
apply to all programs and activities of federal-aid recipients, subrecipients, and contractors, 
regardless of tier (49 CFR 21). 
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The requirements include providing and maintaining the following, as detailed in LAPM 
Section 9.2: Title VI Nondiscrimination Statement, Assurances (as part of the Master 
Agreement and Program Supplement Agreement), Designation of a Title VI Coordinator, 
Complaint Procedures, Data Collection, Training, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
accessibility, Dissemination of Information, Contracts and Agreements, Environmental 
Justice, Public Hearings and Meetings, Right-of-Way activities, Construction contract 
compliance, Monitoring, and others. 

 
Note that an agency is subject to a Title VI program and compliance review at any time by 
Caltrans, Division of Local Assistance. 

 
Caltrans Division of Local Assistance has an updated Title VI website on “Filing a Complaint” as 
of March 20, 2019. The following link provides guidance to local agencies for processing Title VI 
complaints 

 
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/title-vi 
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Local Assistance (continued): 
 

 
 

Please update your mail lists. Mail continues to arrive at our previous mail stations.  
Please send correspondence to this address: 

 
District 11 – Local Assistance Branch – New Mail Station 
Caltrans, District 11, Local Assistance Engineer 
Planning & Local Assistance Division 
4050 Taylor Street MS – 244 
San Diego, CA 92110 
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Portions of this map contain geographic information copyrighted
 by the Imperial County GIS program.  All rights reserved.
The data provided is "as is" without warranty of any kind.

Date:07/16/2019

STATUS OF TRANSPORTATION  PROJECTS

            :Project funded by Senate Bill 1

Abbreviations:

GSA: General Services Administration

POE: Port of Entry

0 10 205

Miles

I

1.  SR-186/I-8 Interchange Improvements

2.  SR-7 All American Canal Bridge Widening

3.  SR-86/Dogwood Road Intersection Improvements*
Design Complete Fall 2019

4.  SR-86/SR-111 Intersection Improvements*
Design Complete Fall 2019

5.  I-8/Imperial Ave Interchange Improvements
Design Complete Summer 2019

6.  SR-98 Widening Phase 1C
Ollie Ave to Rockwood Ave
Design Complete Summer 2019

7.  SR-98 Pavement Rehabilitation
Design Complete Spring 2020

8.  SR-78/115 Culvert Repairs
Construction Start Summer 2019

9.  SR-86 Pavement Rehabilitation
Construction Start Summer 2019

10.  SR-111/SR-98 Pavement Rehabilitation
Construction Complete Summer 2019
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B.  Calexico Traffic Management Plan
Spring 2018 - Summer 2019
C.  Calipatria Proposed Railroad Corridor 
Multi-Use Bikeway Plan
Winter 2018 - Spring 2020
D.  City of El Centro Land Use, Mobility 
and Environmental Justice Elements
Summer 2019 - Spring 2021
E.  Climate Action Plan
Summer 2019 - Summer 2021

STATUS OF TRANSPORTATION  STUDIES AND REPORTS

Calexico East POE

PLANNING

IMPERIAL COUNTY 

47



Active Transportation Program Symposium: Inform. Educate. Inspire.

Active Transportation Program
 2019 Symposium:

Inform. Educate. Inspire.
 

August 19-20, 2019
 

Sacramento State University
Alumni Center

6000 College Town Drive,
Sacramento, CA 95819

The Active Transportation Program Symposium is a two-day event co-hosted by the
California Transportation Commission and Caltrans. The goals of the Symposium are to
share and gather information on relevant active transportation topics and issues, and
allow stakeholders to connect with the State in an alternate setting. The symposium will
showcase inspiring speakers, engaging panel sessions, and provide networking
opportunities. Topics will include benefits, equity, safety and non-infrastructure projects.
We hope you can join us. Registration information will be available next week.

Active Transportation Resource Center
Thu 6/20/2019 7:02 AM

To:Owen, Robin@DOT <robin.owen@dot.ca.gov>;
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Introducing our Master of Ceremonies!

Carl Guardino is the President and CEO of the Silicon Valley
Leadership Group, a public policy trade association that
represents more than 350 of Silicon Valley’s most respected
employers. He is also a four-term gubernatorial appointee on
the California Transportation Commission. Known throughout
the region as a consensus builder, Guardino has championed
a number of successful ballot measures, especially in the
areas of transportation and housing. Guardino was born and
raised in San Jose and received his Bachelor of Arts degree
in political science from San Jose State University, where he
is a Distinguished Alumnus. He is married to Leslee
Guardino. In their spare time, they compete in marathons, triathlons and duathlons.
 

Introducing the Featured Keynote Speaker!

Tamika L. Butler, Esq. is Toole Design’s California
Planning Director and heads up the company’s Equity
and Inclusion efforts. She has a diverse background in
law, community planning and engagement and uses her
experience to help communities and organizations
address inequality, diversity, and injustice in their work.
Tamika has written and spoken extensively on the
intersections of transportation, public health, and equity.
Most recently, Tamika was the executive director of the
Los Angeles Neighborhood Land Trust, where she led
the prominent non-profit in its work designing, building,
and managing urban parks and gardens in communities
across the Los Angeles Area. Prior to that, she was the
executive director of the Los Angeles County Bicycle
Coalition. There, she doubled the organization’s
revenue, grew its public presence, and helped LACBC

garner local and national attention for its intersectional lens on bicycle transportation and
advocacy. She was named the Professional of the Year – Nonprofit Sector award by the
Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals (APBP) in 2016.

Active Transportation Resource Center | 3000 State University Drive, Sacramento, CA 95682
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SCLAMM 
Southern California Local Assistance Management Meeting  

SAVE THE DATE 

Date: September 11th, 2019  

TIME: 9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

Location: Caltrans District 12 TMC 

Address: 6681 Marine Way, Irvine, CA 92618  

Room 242/243 

RSVP by Wednesday August 28th  

To: Mirna Beshay @ mirna.beshaytadrous@dot.ca.gov 

Hosted by District 12  

 

 SCLAMM, Presented by Caltrans Staff for Local Public Agencies.  

Who is invited:  

Southern California Local Agencies; HQ, FHWA; Districts 7, 8, 11, and 12 
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A. Legal Services Agreement – County of Imperial – Imperial 

County Transportation Commission (ICTC) FY 2019-20 to FY 

2020-21 
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AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES BETWEEN 

IMPERIAL COUNTY AND  

IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

 This Agreement for legal services (hereinafter “Agreement”) made by and between 

Imperial County, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereinafter “County”), and 

Imperial County Transportation Commission (hereinafter “ICTC”) (individually, “Party;” 

collectively, “Parties”) shall be as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, ICTC intends to function in compliance with California Public Utilities Code 

Section 132800 et. seq. as an independent agency while minimizing the costs of independence; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the ICTC desires to utilize the services most fiscally responsible including 

services available through County; and 

 WHEREAS, County will employ its best efforts to ensure that legal services are provided 

in the most efficient and professional manner; and 

 WHEREAS, ICTC has in the past utilized services of County to provide services as 

needed and County and ICTC desire to maintain an arrangement whereby County provides such 

legal services as deemed necessary by ICTC, subject to reimbursement by ICTC. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 1. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2019 and remain in effect 

until June 30, 2021.  It may be renewed upon the mutual, written, consent of both Parties. 

 2. TERMINATION.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party, without 

cause, upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the other Party.  

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  County Counsel shall provide ICTC with the following 

general legal services if such service is authorized by the Executive Director or his/her designee: 

act as legal advisor to ICTC; attend ICTC public and private meetings on an as-needed basis; 
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provide legal opinions or analysis on issues that arise; draft contracts or other documents; attend 

training sessions or conferences; provide any additional services necessary for general legal 

representation.  Specifically excluded from the scope of services are matters pertaining to 

litigation.  Any legal services for matters involving litigation shall be provided only after both 

Parties have agreed in writing to such services being provided. 

 4. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES.  In consideration of all services rendered 

by County Counsel, ICTC agrees to pay County Counsel for the performance of legal services 

described above.  The annual cost of the services shall be thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00), to 

be paid on a quarterly basis of seven thousand five hundred dollars ($7,500.00).  ICTC shall also 

pay for the cost of all appropriate training for attorneys and staff as approved by ICTC and County 

Counsel. 

 5. DELEGATION AND ASSIGNMENT.  County and the ICTC Executive Director 

may enter into such other subsidiary agreements as may be necessary to implement and effectuate 

the intention of this Agreement and fulfill its purposes; provided, however, no such agreement 

may change the total amount of obligation payable by ICTC without the prior approval of ICTC. 

 6. INDEMNIFICATION. 

  a. ICTC agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold County harmless from any and 

all claims or lawsuits that may be made against County which arise out of any action or decision 

made by County as part of its statutorily prescribed duties and which lawsuit may be premised 

upon the activities of an employee provided by County under this Agreement.  If any judgment is 

rendered against County in any such lawsuit, ICTC shall, at its own expense, satisfy and discharge 

any judgment. 

  b. The foregoing duty to indemnify shall not be applicable if the action of the 

employee that gives rise to the claim or lawsuit is performed while the employee is acting on 

behalf of County and not ICTC. 

   c. Notwithstanding the limitations of any insurance, County shall indemnify, 

protect, and hold harmless ICTC and its authorized agents, officers, volunteers, and employees 

from and against any and all claims, liabilities, or actions arising from County’s negligent acts or 
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omissions in the administration of this Agreement and for any costs or expenses incurred by ICTC 

on account of any claim thereof. 

 7. NOTICE.  All notices to either Party shall be in writing and either sent through the 

United States Mail, certified, and return receipt requested; or personally delivered.  The notice 

shall be effective upon date of personal delivery or date of mailing.  Notices shall be sent or 

delivered to: 

    ICTC: 

    Imperial County Transportation Commission 

    1503 N. Imperial Avenue, Suite 104 

    El Centro, CA  92243 

 

     Imperial County:    

    Imperial County Executive Office 

    940 Main Street, Suite 208 

    El Centro, CA  92243 

    and 

    Imperial County Office of the County Counsel 

    940 Main Street, Suite 205 

    El Centro, CA  92243 

 

 8. WAIVER.  Waiver of any default shall not be considered a waiver of any 

subsequent default.  Waiver of any breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be 

considered a waiver of any subsequent breach.  Waiver of any default or breach shall not be 

considered a modification of the terms of this Agreement. 

 9. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason held to be 

invalid, it should not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 10. MODIFICATION.  This Agreement may not be modified except upon the mutual 

written consent of the Parties. 
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 11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire and complete 

understanding of the Parties and supersedes any and all other agreements, oral or written, with 

respect to the provision of administration of services under this Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

on behalf of the persons duly authorized by the governing boards of the Parties hereto. 

 
IMPERIAL COUNTY:    IMPERIAL COUNTY 
       TRANSPORTATION COMISSION: 
   
 
 
By:         By:        

RYAN E. KELLEY      
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors  Chair of the Board 

 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:         By:        
 BLANCA ACOSTA     CRISTI LERMA 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors   Secretary to the Commission 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
KATHERINE TURNER    GEOFFREY P. HOLBROOK 
County Counsel     Assistant County Counsel 
 
 
By:        By:      
        KATHERINE TURNER    Eric Havens 
         County Counsel     Deputy County Counsel 
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cal Audits for FY 2017-18 
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1503 N. IMPERIAL AVE., SUITE 104 
EL CENTRO, CA  92243-2875 

PHONE: (760) 592-4494 

FAX: (760) 592-4410 

July 19, 2019           
 

 

 

Robert Amparano, Chairman  

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

1503 N. Imperial Avenue, Suite 104 

El Centro, CA  92243 
 

 

 SUBJECT: Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Program Fiscal Audits for FY 2017-18 

 

 

Dear Commission Members: 

 

As required by the State of California, the Commission must conduct independent fiscal audits of its own 

financial activities on an annual basis.  Attached, please find the following program financial audits and 

reports for FY 2017-18, performed by the CPA firm, Vavrinek, Trine and Day (VTD): 

 

• Transportation Development Act – receipt and allocation by ICTC of ¼ cent retail sales tax under 

Articles 8c, 8e and Article 3 under the State TDA, for transit programs and services (#7076001) 

• State Transit Assistance – receipt and allocation of funding under the State Transit Assistance (STA) 

Program, the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement 

Account Program (PTMISEA), the California Transit Security Grant Program (CTGSP) and the 

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (#7079001,7481001,7482001, 7553001) 

• Regional Transit Planning and Programs – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for programs 

and services including transit service contracts, grants, project consultants and program staffing 

(#7416001) 

• Regional Planning and Programming – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for planning 

programs and services including long- and short-range highway, motorized and non-motorized 

projects, call for projects, project consultants and program staffing (#7417001) 

• Regional Collaboration – receipt and allocation of funding by ICTC for various regional projects 

whereby ICTC is the fiscal agent, including the Brownfield assessments and Broadband deployment 

grants with the Imperial Valley Economic Development Corp (IVEDC) (#7577001) 

• SB325 report for the State Controller’s Office 

 
ICTC is developing the documentation for FY 2018-19 in preparation for the first Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report or CAFR, with the audit team from VTD.  It is anticipated that FY 2017-18 will be the last 

cycle of program style audits to be completed. 
 
 

 

CITIES OF BRAWLEY, CALEXICO, CALIPATRIA, EL CENTRO, HOLTVILLE, IMPERIAL, WESTMORLAND, 

IMPERIAL IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 
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Robert Amparano, Chairman    Page 2     July 2, 2019 

Imperial County Transportation Commission 

 
 

 

The ICTC Management Committee met on July 12, 2019 and forwards this item to the Commission for their 

review and approval after public comment, if any:  
 

1. Receive and file the Transportation Development Act and other program fiscal audits for the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission, for FY 2017-18. 

2. Direct staff to transmit the fiscal audits to the State Controller’s Office. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
MARK BAZA 

Executive Director 

 
 

 

MB/ksw/da 

 

Attachments 
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IMPERIAL COUNTY  
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 
Financial Report of the 

Transit Planning and Programs Management Fund 
June 30, 2018 and 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Commission Board Members 
County of Imperial, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund 
of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund 
and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation 
Commission as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated July 2, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Imperial County Transportation Commission Management's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, 
the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Codes of Regulation (CCR) and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial County Transportation Commission's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the Transit Planning and Programs Management Fund.  

San Diego, California 
July 2, 2019 
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IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
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The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements 
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2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments 8,466,302$    6,478,803$    
Grants receivable 1,341,188 2,609,924 
Due from other funds - 26,705 
Due from other governments 1,856,739     -  
Interest receivable 23,017    12,804      

Total Current Assets 11,687,246  9,128,236 

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets being depreciated 10,856,440  10,389,736    
Accumulated depreciation (3,325,019) (2,291,120)    

Total Noncurrent Assets 7,531,421 8,098,616 
Total Assets 19,218,667  17,226,852    

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 633,587  612,569    
Due to other funds - 33 

Total Current Liabilities 633,587  612,602    

NET POSITION

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 7,531,421 8,098,616 
Restricted 11,053,659  7,153,660 
Unrestricted - 1,361,974

Total Net Position 18,585,080$  16,614,250$  
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2018 2017
Operating Revenues:

Passenger fares 797,922$      823,282$      

Operating Expenses:
Purchased transportation services 7,956,782     8,069,840     
Professional services 430,784        332,137        
General administration 549,931        1,611,945     
Depreciation 1,024,762     -                  
Capital contributions 1,410,725     800,000        

Total Operating Expenses 11,372,984    10,813,922    
Operating Income (10,575,062)  (9,990,640)    

Nonoperating Revenues:
State transit revenues 7,485,750     5,833,751     
Federal grant revenues 4,241,574     2,670,157     
ICTC reimbursements 456,641        1,863,912     
Interest income 81,749          54,867          

Total Nonoperating Revenues 12,265,714    10,422,687    

Change in Net Position 1,690,652     432,047        

Net Position Beginning, July 1 (restated) 16,894,428    16,182,203    

Net Position Ending, June 30 18,585,080$  16,614,250$  
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2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Passenger fares  $       797,922  $      823,282 
Receipts from transit services                    -       6,656,776 
Other receipts                    -       1,863,912 
Payments to vendors      (9,777,306)     (9,295,797)
Payments to employees         (549,931)        (626,533)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (9,529,315)     (578,360)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating grants received 11,902,845     -                  

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (457,567)        (815,303)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 71,536           52,694          

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents        1,987,499     (1,340,969)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 6,478,803      7,819,772     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 8,466,302$     6,478,803$    

Reconciliation Of Operating Income To Net Cash
Operating Income (10,575,062)$  377,180$      

Adjustments To Reconcile Operating Income To Net Cash
Depreciation expense 1,024,762      985,412        
(Increase) Decrease In:

Grants receivable                    -     (1,820,427)
Due from other funds                    -          (26,705)

(Decrease) Increase In:
Accounts payable            21,018          (93,695)
Due to other funds                 (33)              (125)

Total Adjustments 1,045,747      (955,540)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (9,529,315)$   (578,360)$     

 
 
 

66



IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Transit Planning and Programs Management Fund (Transit Fund) of the Imperial County Transportation
Commission (ICTC) was established in order administer the various transit programs, grants and services
provided either in house or under contract with various providers. The program receives various state and
federal grants including the Federal Transportation Administration (FTA) Sections 5307, 5310 and 5311. The
specific federal funds received are programmed to be utilized for operational costs of Imperial Valley Transit
(IVT), the IVT Blue, Green and Gold Lines, MedTrans and IVT ACCESS, the ADA paratransit system and
the Mobility Coordination program.

The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the
Transit Fund of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly
the financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The FTA Section 5307 and 5311 funds are not accessed until a scope of work is approved. The FTA Section
5307 and 5311 grants are developed based on estimates for each fiscal year, which are not available until
October of each year.

B. Basis of Accounting

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Fund Accounting

The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific activities.
ICTC accounts for the Transit Fund activities in a proprietary fund using the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

C. Cash and Investments

The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed.
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the
respective funds including the Transit fund average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks related
to cash and investments, applicable to the Transit fund, are those of the County investment pool and are
disclosed in the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic financial statements can be obtained
at the County Administrative Office.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
The Transit fund’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value measurements are based on 
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs.  The Transit fund’s deposits and withdrawals in the County Investment Pool are made on 
the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the RPP fund’s investment in the County Investment Pool is 
measured based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3. 

 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, ICTC considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with 
a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

 
D. Use of Estimates  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
E. Net Position 

 
Net position is composed reported according to the following classifications: Net investment in capital assets, 
restricted, and unrestricted.  

 
Restricted net position fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available, 
ICTC considers unrestricted funds to have been spent first. 
 

2018 2017
Net Position at June 30,
Net investment in capital assets 7,531,421$    8,098,616$    
Restricted 11,053,659    7,153,660     
Unrestricted -                  1,361,974     

Total net position 18,585,080$  16,614,250$  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

F. Prior-Year Data 
 

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. This 
information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the Transit Fund’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data was 
derived. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – FEDERAL GRANTS RECEIVABLE 
 

During fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 there was an amount of $1,126,811 and $2,609,924, respectively, 
to recognize the Federal Grant revenues accrued for the year that were received in the subsequent year. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
During fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 capital assets of $7,540,557 and $8,098,616, respectively, were 
reported which is the total fixed assets less accumulated depreciation and represents the total net investment in 
fixed assets.  
 
 
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 

During fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 there was an amount of $633,619 and $612,569, respectively, 
to recognize operational expenses for the year that were paid in the following fiscal year. 
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NOTE 5 – FEDERAL TRANSIT FORMULA GRANTS 

The following consists of the Activity of the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit Grant (Urbanized 
Area Formula Program - Federal Grant 5307, Rural Area Formula Program - Federal Grant 5311, Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities - Federal Grant 5310 and Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality Improvement Program - CMAQ): 

Program Number CA-2017-1

50% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

100% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
for IVT, IVT 
Fiscal Year 17/18 Operations 2,893,234$    -$   2,893,234$   

Requested 6/30/2018 2,893,234    - 2,893,234 
Per grant 2,893,234    - 2,893,234 

FTA 5307 Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18 -$ -$ -$  

Program Number SA64B019-00880 55.33% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

100% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
for IVT, ACCESS & Gold
Fiscal Year 17/18 Operations  $    301,910 -$   301,910$  

Requested 6/30/2018 -   -    
Per grant -   -    

FTA 5311
expended 1-2019

Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18 301,910$   -$   301,910$  

Program Number SA64AM16-0045 100% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

80% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
Mobility Management
Fiscal Year 14/15 Operations  $    104,977 -$   104,977$  

Requested 6/30/2018 104,977 - 104,977
Per grant 104,977 - 104,977

FTA 5310       
fully expended

Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18  $   - -$ -$
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NOTE 5 – FEDERAL TRANSIT FORMULA GRANTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Program Number SA64AM18-00671 100% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

80% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
Mobility Management
Fiscal Year 16/17 Operations  $           353,052 -$                     353,052$           

Requested 6/30/2018 20,122 -                       20,122               
Per grant -                       -                       

FTA 5310

Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18  $           332,930 -$                     332,930$           

Program Number SA6414007 88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
for Brawley Bus Stops
Fiscal Year 13/14 Capital 531,000$           531,000$           

Requested 6/30/2018 531,000             531,000             
Per grant 531,000             531,000             

FTA 5311
fully expended

Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18 -$                     -$                     -$                     

Program Number SA64BC15-00236 88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

Capital Total
for Brawley Bus Stops
Fiscal Year 14/15 Capital 387,301$           387,301$           

Requested 6/30/2018 387,301             387,301             
Per grant 387,301             387,301             

FTA 5311
fully expended

Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18 -$                     -$                     -$                     

Program Number CML-6471(014) 88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

Operations

88.53% Federal
Reimbursement

PS&E Total
for Calexico ITC
Fiscal Year 14/15 PS&E 495,000$           495,000$           

Requested 6/30/2018 3,030                 3,030                 
Per grant -                       

CMAQ Available Grant
 Balance at 6/30/18 -$                     491,970$           491,970$           

Funds Received 3,939,664$         
Allocated 301,910             
Total 4,241,574$         
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2018 2017
Schedule I - State Transit Revenues

State Transit Revenue - TDA/LTF/STA  $       7,479,934  $       4,991,404 
State Transit Revenue - PTMISEA                       - 815,642           
State Transit Revenue - CTSGP                5,816 26,705             

State Transit Revenues - Total 7,485,750$       5,833,751$       

Schedule II - Federal Grant Revenues

Federal Grant Revenue - Section 5307  $       2,893,234  $       2,609,924 
Federal Grant Revenue - Section 5310             125,099               60,233 
Federal Grant Revenue - Section 5311          1,220,211                       - 
Federal Grant Revenue - CMAQ                3,030                       - 

Federal Grant Revenues - Total 4,241,574$       2,670,157$       

Schedule III - ICTC Reimbursements Revenues

Transfer from Admin, Plans and Programs Funds  $                   -  $         792,870 
LTA Transit 2% Allocation             393,449             350,000 
LTA SHR 5% Allocation               35,234             708,240 
Miscellaneous Revenue               27,958               12,802 

ICTC Reimbursement Revenues - Total 456,641$          1,863,912$       

Interest Pooled Money  $           81,749  $           54,867 

Schedule IV - Purchased Transportation Services

Countywide Transit System  $       2,849,778  $       2,686,508 
YCAT             138,709             138,710 
IVT - Blue/Green Line             628,910             634,044 
IVT- Gold Line             239,862             263,125 
IVT-ACCESS          1,423,237          1,532,356 
MedTrans             427,241             527,408 
IVT-Ride          1,451,124          1,464,406 
Transportation Reserves & Fare Adjustments             797,921             823,283 

Purchased Transportation Services - Total 7,956,782$       8,069,840$       

Schedule V - Professional Services

Professional & Special Services  $         337,547  $         230,916 
Prof & Spec Svs Data Pro                3,466                1,976 
Prof & Spec Svs -Audit               89,771               89,983 
Overhead Reimbursement -                                    9,262 

Professional Services - Total 430,784$          332,137$          
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2018 2017
Schedule VI - General Administration 

General Administration - Salaries & Benefits

Salaries  $         149,251  $         330,629 
Tuition Reimbursement 1000 1,000 
Social Security - Medicare 10,496 9,588 
County Contr Retirement 57,606 54,166 
Ins-Workers Comp 7,765 12,521 
Ins-Unemployment 2,068 2,068 
Group Insurance             72,612 56,657 
Retirement-Pension Bond 6,025 6,034 
Retirement - Health Plan 9,654 9,024 
Redemption of Benefits 23,752 20,969 
Ins- Dental/Vision 7,511 4,981 
Payroll Taxes 2,362 2,362 
Insurance - Voluntary Life 398 357 

General Administration - Salaries & Benefits Total 350,500$          510,356$          

General Administration - Other

Communications - Phone Charge  $             2,870  $           2,360 
Communications - Services 175  -- 
Communications - Cell Phones 4,336 4,006 
Insurance Liability             79,865 56,871 
Memberships 4,494 1,748 
Office Expenses 13,059 8,711 
Fuel Expense 819 993 
Publications and Legal Notices 4,082 3,749 
Rents & Leases 51,649 22,899 
Maintenance 3,036 145 
Travel Out of Cnty Misc 14,012 8,670 
Special Dept Expense 5,207 603 
Utilities 7,526 5,422 
Equipment 8,301  -- 
Depreciation Equipment           1,024,762           985,412 

General Administration - Other Total 1,224,193$       1,101,589$       

General Administration - Grand Total 1,574,693$       1,611,945$       
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2018 2017
Schedule VII - Capital Contribution Expenses

Reserve TRF 5 IVT Cutaways 330,000$          -$                    
El Centro Security Guard/Brawley Transfer Terminal 1,080,725         -                     
Heber/SR-86 Bus Stop & Ped Improvements -                      800,000           

Capital Contribution Expenses - Total 1,410,725$       800,000$          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
July 2, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses.  We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding and response as item 2018-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Transit Planning and Programs Management fund of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and the California Code of Regulation Section 6667, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Management’s Response to Findings 

Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

San Diego, California 
July 2, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED  
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, contracts, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence about the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the Imperial County Transportation Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Imperial County Transportation Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

79



 

18 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s Transit Planning 
and Programs Management fund as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon 
dated July 2, 2019, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted 
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance 
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
July 2, 2019 
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See note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Federal Grant/Pass-Through Grantor 

Federal
CFDA

NUMBER

Pass-Through
Grantor's 
Number

Program
Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through State Department of Transportation:
Federal Transit Cluster Federal Transit Formula Grants, Section 5307 20.507 CA-7016-2017-130 2,893,234$      

Passed Through State Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 CML-6471(014) 3,030              

Passed Through State Department of Transportation:
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, Section 5310 20.513 SA-64AM16-0045 104,977          
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, Section 5310 20.513 SA64AM18-00671 20,122            

Subtotal 20.513 125,099          

Passed Through State Department of Transportation:
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 SA6414007 531,000          
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 SA64BC15-00236 387,301          
Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 SA64B017-00577 301,910          

Subtotal 20.509 1,220,211        

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 4,241,574        

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 4,241,574$      
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting 
 
The expenditures included in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards were reported on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, which is further described in Note 1 to the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission's fund financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal financial assistance 
programs of the Imperial County Transportation Commission. Federal financial assistance received directly from 
federal agencies, as well as federal financial assistance passed through the State Department of Transportation, are 
included in the Schedule. The Schedule was prepared from only the accounts of various grant programs and, 
therefore, does not represent the financial position or results of operations of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission. 
 
Indirect Costs 
 
The Imperial County Transportation Commission did not elect to use the 10% de minimis cost rate. 
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I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unmodified

No
Yes
No

FEDERAL AWARDS

No
None Reported

Unmodified

No

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.507 Federal Transit Cluster
20.509 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

750,000$       
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Identification of major federal programs:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited    
  were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 
  2 CFR Section 200.516(a)

Internal control over financial reporting:

Internal control over major federal programs:
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II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2018-001 
 
YEAR-END CUTOFF 
 
Criteria: 
 
In order to fairly present year-end financial statements, management must perform a year-end closing process to 
accumulate, reconcile, and summarize information for inclusion. The closing process should include the review of 
balances for proper cutoff.  
 
Condition: 
 
During our audit, we noted the following: 
 

 Certain accounts payable balances had not been accrued and required adjustment. 
 Certain accounts receivable balances had not been accrued and required adjustment. 
 Certain accounts cash balances were not recorded and required adjustment. 

 
Context: 
 
The condition noted above was identified during testing over various accounts and balances.       
 
Effect: 
 
Adjustments were necessary to fairly present the financial statements.  
 
Cause: 
 
The year-end closing process was not complete. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that ICTC enhance its year-end closing process. This can be accomplished through a comprehensive 
closing checklist. The checklist should list each task, the person responsible for its completion, and the date the task 
should be completed. 
 
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 
 
See separate Corrective Action Plan. 
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III.  FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

None reported. 
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None reported. 
 
 

86



IMPERIAL COUNTY  
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Financial Report of the 
Transportation Development Act Fund (TDA) 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 

87



 

 

IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

Financial Report of the 
Transportation Development Act Fund (TDA) 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ................................................................................................. 1 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Balance Sheets .................................................................................................................................. 3 
 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .......................................... 4 
 
Notes to Financial Statements .......................................................................................................... 5 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
  FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
  BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMETNS PERFORMED IN 
  ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS .................................................. 8 
 

Schedule of Finding and Response ................................................................................................. 10 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Allocations and Disbursements .................................................................................. 11 
 

88



 

1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transportation Development Act fund (TDA) of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Transportation Development Act fund (TDA) of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the TDA Fund and do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation Commission as of June 30, 2018, and the 
changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the TDA fund’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 
 
The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information. Such information does not include all 
of the information required or sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction 
with the TDA Fund’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which such partial information 
was derived. The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 were audited by other auditors and 
their report dated March 31, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated _____, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting of the 
TDA fund and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Codes of Regulation (CCR) and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial County Transportation Commission's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the TDA fund. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
______, 2019 
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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2018 2017
ASSETS

Cash and investments 12,163,494$  9,482,195$    
Accounts receivable -                     195,097         
Interest receivable 30,511 19,307           

Total Assets 12,194,005$  9,696,599$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable 1,856,739$    -$                   

Fund Balance
Restricted 10,337,266 -                     
Assigned -                     8,397,785      
Unassigned -                     1,298,814      

Total Fund Balance 10,337,266    9,696,599      

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 12,194,005$  9,696,599$    
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2018 2017
Revenues

Transportation Development Act 6,800,179$    6,092,290$    
Interest income 91,479           62,958           

Total Revenues 6,891,658      6,155,248      

Expenditures
Current:

City of Brawley 117,674         87,422           
City of Calexico 75,546           -                     
City of Calipatria -                     13,773           
City of El Centro 124,556         126,085         
City of Holtville -                     16,330           
City of Imperial 49,682           -                     
City of Westmorland -                     -                     
County of Imperial 45,552           47,528           
ICTC 4,254,782      5,008,726      
Capital outlay 2,186,739      -                     

Total Expenditures 6,854,531      5,299,864      

Change in Fund Balance 37,127           855,384         

Fund Balance Beginning as restated 10,300,139    8,841,215      

Fund Balance Ending 10,337,266$  9,696,599$    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) Transportation Development Act fund was 
established by ICTC in order to administer funds derived from 1/4 cent of the local general sales tax collected 
statewide. The State Board of Equalization returns the 1/4 cent to each county according to the amount of the 
tax collected. Disbursements from the TDA fund are made to the County of Imperial and the cities located 
within the County for eligible projects.  

 
The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
TDA fund of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements  

 
Fund Accounting 
 
The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific activities.  
ICTC accounts for the TDA activities within its TDA Special Revenue Fund. 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted or committed 
to expenditure for specified purposes.  
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
The special revenue funds of ICTC are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues are available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability 
is incurred.  Operating statements of governmental funds present increases (revenues and other financing 
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current resources.  

 
C. Use of Estimates  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Fund Balances  
 

Fund balance is reported according to the following classifications: nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can 
be spent. 

 
Restricted fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints 
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the ICTC considers restricted funds to have been spent first. 
 
The TDA fund distributes funds according to the annual regional ICTC Overall Work Plan & Budget and in 
accordance with the annual disbursements schedule adopted each year by ICTC. Any monies allocated and 
assigned in the fund and not authorized for payment within three years after the date of allocation shall cease 
to be allocated or assigned and shall become and be treated as an unallocated apportionment retained in the 
fund in accordance with Section 6655.1. Also, allocations for benches and shades made in accordance with 
PUC Code Section 99400(e) do not carryover, and lapse if not claimed in the year allocated.  The TDA Fund 
reports fund balance as restricted. 

 
E. Cash and Investments 
 

The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. 
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize 
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the 
respective funds including the TDA fund average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks related 
to cash and investments, applicable to the TDA fund, are those of the County investment pool and are disclosed 
in the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic financial statements can be obtained at the 
County Administrative Office. 

 
The TDA fund’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value measurements are based on the 
fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs.  The TDA fund’s deposits and withdrawals in the County Investment Pool are made on 
the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the TDA fund’s investment in the County Investment Pool is 
measured based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3. 

 
F. Prior-Year Data 

 
Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. This 
information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the TDA’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data was derived. 
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NOTE 2 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
At June 30, 2018, accounts payable of $1,856,739 represents amounts being charged to the TDA fund for bus fleet 
replacement.   
 
 
NOTE 3 – BUDGETED EXPENDITURES 
 
The TDA distributes funds in accordance with the annual disbursements schedule and according to the annual 
regional ICTC Overall Work Plan & Budget adopted each year by ICTC. Any variance is due to cities not spending 
their current year's budgeted appropriations or spending prior year's appropriations in the current year. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
 
During the year, resources previously unrecognized in the TDA Fund were identified.  The beginning fund balance 
was adjusted accordingly.  The impact to the beginning balances was as follows: 

 
Fund balance as previously reported 9,696,599$        
Accumulated resources previously unrecognized 603,540             
Fund balance as restated 10,300,139$      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Transportation Development Act fund (TDA) of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Transportation Development Act fund (TDA) of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
_____, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying 
schedule of finding and response as item 2018-001  that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Transportation Development Act fund (TDA) of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and the California Code of Regulation Section 6661, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Management’s Response to Findings 
 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal 
control and compliance as it relates to the TDA Fund. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
_______, 2019 
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Finding 2018-001 
 
YEAR-END CUTOFF 
 
Criteria: 
 
In order to fairly present year-end financial statements, management must perform a year-end closing process to 
accumulate, reconcile, and summarize information for inclusion. The closing process should include the review of 
balances for proper cutoff.  
 
Condition: 
 
During our audit, resources previously unrecognized in the TDA Fund were identified and the beginning equity 
balances were restated accordingly. 

 
Context: 
 
The condition noted above was identified during testing over various accounts and balances.    
 
Effect: 
 
Adjustments were necessary to fairly present the financial statements.  
 
Cause: 
 
The year-end closing process was not complete. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that ICTC enhance its year-end closing process. This can be accomplished through a comprehensive 
closing checklist. The checklist should list each task, the person responsible for its completion, and the date the task 
should be completed. 
 
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 
 
ICTC staff will research additional resources, obtain tools, i.e., checklists and templates, in order to ensure that the 
year-end close is completed as required. ICTC staff will create documentation to track year end transactions.  
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ALLOCATIONS PUC Section Budget Actual Variance

City of Brawley
Bicycles 99233.3 25,393$             -$                       25,393$             
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 178,882             117,674             61,208               
Total 204,275             117,674             -                         

City of Calexico
Bicycles 99233.3 33,486               33,444               42                      
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 42,102               42,102               -                         
Total 75,588               75,546               42                      

City of Calipatria
Bicycles 99233.3 12,126               -                         12,126               
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 1,548                 -                         1,548                 
Total 13,674               -                         -                         

City of El Centro
Bicycles 99233.3 35,782               35,782               -                         
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 88,774               88,774               -                         
Total 124,556             124,556             -                         

City of Holtville
Bicycles 99233.3 13,600               -                         13,600               
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 2,620                 -                         2,620                 
Total 16,220               -                         

City of Imperial
Bicycles 99233.3 20,717               41,879               (21,162)              
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 7,803                 7,803                 -                         
Total 28,520               49,682               (21,162)              

City of Westmorland
Bicycles 99233.3 11,364               -                         11,364               
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 964                    -                         964                    
Total 12,328               -                         12,328               

County of Imperial
Bicycles 99233.3 30,572               30,572               -                         
Benches and Shades 99400(e) 14,980               14,980               -                         
Total 45,552               45,552               -                         

ICTC
SB 325 - IVT-RIDE 99400(c) 1,314,661          1,314,661          -                         
SB 325 - County Wide Transit 99400(c) 1,687,480          1,687,480          -                         
SB 325 - Quechan Tribe/YCAT 99400(c) 138,709             138,709             -                         
SB 325 - ICTC Admin 92233.1 716,062             716,062             -                         
SB 325 - ICTC Planning 99400(a) 397,870             397,870             -                         
Total 4,254,782          4,254,782          -                         
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the State Transit Assistance fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the 
related notes to the combined financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as 
listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of combined 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the Guidelines on Auditing for Conformance, published by the Imperial Valley Association of Governments and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting polices used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the State Transit Assistance Fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the State Transit Assistance Fund and do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the combined financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 
 
The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information. Such information does not include all 
of the information required or sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the State Transit Assistance Fund’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from 
which such partial information was derived. The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 
were audited by other auditors and their report dated March 31, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion on the 
financial statements. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
We have also issued a report dated _______, 2019 on our consideration of the State Transit Assistance Fund's 
compliance over financial reporting based on an audit performed in accordance with statutes, rules and 
regulations of the California Development Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the 
Transportation Commission. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and 
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial County Transportation 
Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the State Transit Assistance 
Fund. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
_______, 2019 
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2018 2017
ASSETS

Cash and investments 1,788,396$    1,516,368$    
Interest receivable 4,948             3,131             
Grant receivable 410,032         -                     

Total Assets 2,203,376$    1,519,499$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable -$                   221,802$       

Fund Balance
Restricted 2,203,376      660,659         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,203,376$    882,461$       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105



IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND 

 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 

 
 

4 

2018 2017
Revenues

STA Funds 1,292,939$    878,924$       
LCTOP Funds 89,254           -                     
CTSGP Funds 240,009         133,338         
Interest - STA 8,901             7,297             
Interest - LCTOP 2,621             1,420             
Interest - CTSGP 3,449             1,081             
Interest - PTMISEA 1,848             1,887             

Total Revenues 1,639,021      1,023,947      

Expenditures
STA Projects 920,739         1,169,031      
PTMISEA Projects -                     622,159         
CTSGP Projects 5,816             26,705           

Total Expenditures 926,555         1,817,895      

Change in Fund Balance 712,466         (793,948)        

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1, (Restated) 1,490,910      2,091,645      

Fund Balance Ending, June 30 2,203,376$    1,297,697$    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF) of the County of Imperial, California was created pursuant to 
SB 620 to supplement existing funding sources for public transit services. The Imperial County 
Transportation Commission (ICTC) administers the STAF. 
 
The revenues of the fund are derived from a portion of the sales tax on gasoline, and are subject to 
appropriation by the legislature. Disbursements from the fund are made by the Imperial County Auditor-
Controller based upon allocation instructions received from ICTC. 
 
The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
STAF of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the 
financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
The accompanying STAF balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance 
includes subaccount balances of the following revenue sources: 
 

STA 
PTMISEA 
CTSGP 
LCTOP 

 
B. Basis of Accounting 
 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements  
 

Fund Accounting 
 
The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out 
specific activities.  ICTC accounts for the STAF activities within its STAF Special Revenue Fund. 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted or 
committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
The special revenue funds of ICTC are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues 
are available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred.  Operating statements of governmental funds present increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
resources. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

C. Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  
 

D. Fund Balances  
 
Fund balance is reported according to the following classifications: nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts 
can be spent. 
 
Restricted fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints 
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the ICTC considers restricted funds to have been spent first. 
 

E. Cash and Investments 
 
The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. 
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize 
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the 
respective funds including the STAF average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks related to 
cash and investments, applicable to the STAF, are those of the County investment pool and are disclosed in 
the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic financial statements can be obtained at the 
County Administrative Office. 
 
The STA fund’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value measurements are based on 
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs.  The STAF’s deposits and withdrawals in the County Investment Pool are 
made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the STAF’s investment in the County Investment 
Pool is measured based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3. 
 

F. Prior Year Data 
 
Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. 
This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete 
presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the STAF’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected 
financial data was derived. 
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NOTE 2 – PTMISEA 
 
In November 2006, California Voters passed a bond measure enacting the Highway Safety, Traffic reduction, Air 
Quality and Port Security Bond Act of 2006. Of the $19.925 billion of state general obligation bonds authorized, 
$4 billion was set aside by the State as instructed by statute as the Public Transportation Modernization 
Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA). These funds are available to the California 
Department of Transportation for intercity rail projects and to transit operators in California for rehabilitation, 
safety or modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, bus 
rapid transit improvements or for rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement. 
 
As of June 30, 2018 the accumulated balance of the proceeds and earned interest held by ICTC is $201,387 
which includes the remainder of funds from the Imperial bus transfer terminal project. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – CTSGP  
 
In November 2006, California Voters passed a bond measure (Proposition 1B) enacting the Highway Safety, 
Traffic Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act of 2006. Of the $19.925 billion of state general 
obligation bonds authorized, $1 billion was set aside by the State as instructed by statute as the Transit System 
Safety, Security and Disaster Response Account. 
 
Sixty percent of this set aside ($600 million) is available to agencies and transit operators eligible to receive State 
Transit Assistance (STA) funds through the California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP). These funds 
are to be used for capital expenditures to provide increased protection against security or safety threats or to 
increase the capacity of transit operators to develop disaster response transportation systems. 
 
Qualifying expenditures must be encumbered within three years from the date of the allocation and expended 
within three years from the date of the encumbrance. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – LCTOP  
 
The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is one of several programs that are part of the Transit, 
Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 2014 by 
Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emission and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATUTES, 

RULES, AND REGULATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 
AND THE ALLOCATION INSTRUCTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS  

OF THE TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the State Transit Assistance fund of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and have issued our report therein dated 
_____, 2019. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State Transit Assistance fund of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission's financial statements are free of material misstatement we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Additionally, we performed 
tests to determine that allocations made and expenditures paid by the State Transit Assistance Fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission were made in accordance with allocation instructions and 
resolutions of the Imperial County Transportation Commission and in conformance with the Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Code of Regulation 6751. In connection with our audit, nothing 
came to our attention that caused us to believe the State Transit Assistance Fund of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission failed to comply with the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and 
California Codes of Regulation (CCR) and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audits and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
Also as part of our audits we performed tests of compliance to determine whether certain state funds were 
received and expended in accordance with the PTMISEA guidelines and state accounting requirements. 
 
In November 2006, California Voters passed a bond measure enacting the Highway Safety, Traffic reduction, Air 
Quality and Port Security Bond Act of 2006. This Bond Act set aside funds for two categories of transportation 
improvement programs: 

 
1. The Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account 

(PTMISEA) to fund capital projects that relate to infrastructure improvement. 
 

2. The California Transit Security Grant Program-California Transit Assistance Fund (CTSGP) for 
transit system safety, security and disaster response capital projects. 

 
Each year the State of California solicits grant requests for projects meeting the necessary criteria and then 
finances the programs through the sale of bonds. 
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The Imperial County Transportation Commission has successfully applied and received proceeds from the State's 
PTMISEA account for the design and construction of several bus transfer terminals projects in the Imperial 
County. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the PTMISEA funds received, interest earned and expended were verified in the course of 
our audits as follows: 

 
PTMISEA Funds Current Year Activity:

Beginning Balance 199,539$          
Interest Earned 1,848               

201,387           

Unexpended proceeds as of June 30, 2018 201,387$          

 
 
The Imperial County Transportation Commission has successfully applied for CTSGP grants each year for the 
procurement and installation of security infrastructure for several bus transfer terminals projects in the Imperial 
County. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, CTSGP funds received, interest earned and funds expended were verified in the course of 
our audits as follows: 
 

CTSGP Funds Current Year Activity:

Beginning Balance 242,596$          
Interest Earned 3,449               
CTSGP Funds Received 240,009           

Expenditures Incurred this Year:

Bus Security Cameras 5,816               

Unexpended proceeds as of June 30, 2018 480,238$          

 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the State Transit Assistance Fund of the Imperial 
County Transportation Commission's management, the California Department of Transportation, and the State 
Controller's Office and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
________, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of the State Transit Assistance fund 
of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the combined financial statements, which collectively comprise the State Transit Assistance fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s combined financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated _______, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the combined financial statements, we considered the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the combined 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's combined financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding and response as item 2018-001  that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the State Transit Assistance fund of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and the California Code of Regulation Section 6751, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
___________, 2019 
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Finding 2018-001 
 
YEAR-END CUTOFF 
 
Criteria: 
 
In order to fairly present year-end financial statements, management must perform a year-end closing process to 
accumulate, reconcile, and summarize information for inclusion. The closing process should include the review of 
balances for proper cutoff.  
 
Condition: 
 
During our audit, we noted certain accounts receivable balances had not been accrued and required adjustment. 

 
Context: 
 
The condition noted above were identified during testing over various accounts and balances.   Grants receivable 
balances were adjusted approximately $410,000 and beginning equity was adjusted approximately $193,000.    
 
Effect: 
 
Adjustments were necessary to fairly present the financial statements.  
 
Cause: 
 
The year-end closing process was not complete. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
We recommend that ICTC enhance its year-end closing process. This can be accomplished through a 
comprehensive closing checklist. The checklist should list each task, the person responsible for its completion, 
and the date the task should be completed. 
 
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 
 
ICTC staff will research additional resources, obtain tools, i.e., checklists and templates, in order to ensure that 
the year-end close is completed as required. ICTC staff will create documentation to track year end transactions.  
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SCHEDULE I

BALANCE SHEETS - STA
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and investments 822,498$      853,783$      
Interest receivable 2,443           1,973           
Grant receivable 410,032        -                  

Total Assets 1,234,973$   855,756$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable -$                 195,097$      

Fund balance

Restricted 1,234,973     660,659        
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 1,234,973$   855,756$      
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SCHEDULE II

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - STA

2018 2017
Revenues:

STAF 1,292,939$   878,924$      
Interest income 8,901           7,297           

Total Revenues 1,301,840     886,221        

Expenditures:
Current:

MedTrans 228,060        390,194        
ADA Paratransit 692,679        778,837        
Total Expenditures 920,739        1,169,031     

Change in Fund Balance 381,101        (282,810)       

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1 (Restated Balance) 853,872        943,469        

Fund balance Ending, June 30 1,234,973$   660,659$      
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SCHEDULE III 

BALANCE SHEETS - PTMISEA
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and investments 200,841$      199,149$      

Interest receivable 546              390              
Total Assets 201,387$      199,539$      

FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance

Restricted 201,387$      199,539$      
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SCHEDULE IV 

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - PTMISEA

2018 2017
Schedule IV - Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - PTMISEA

Revenues
Interest income 1,848$          1,887$          

Expenditures 
Buses - IVT-RIDE -                  622,159        

Change in Fund Balance 1,848           (620,272)       

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1 199,539 819,811        

Fund Balance Ending, June 30 201,387$      199,539$      
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SCHEDULE V

BALANCE SHEETS - CTSGP
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and investments 479,055$      268,913$      
Interest receivable 1,183           388              

Total Assets 480,238$      269,301$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable -$                 26,705$        

Fund Balance
Restricted 480,238        242,596        

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 480,238$      269,301$      
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SCHEDULE VI

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CTSGP

2018 2017
Revenues:

CTSGP Funds 240,009$      133,338$      
Interest income 3,449           1,081           

Total Revenues 243,458        134,419        

Expenditures:
Security Cameras - CTSGP 5,816 26,705          

Change in Fund Balance 237,642        107,714        

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1 242,596 134,882        

Fund Balance Ending, June 30 480,238$      242,596$      
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SCHEDULE VII

BALANCE SHEETS - LCTOP
2018 2017

ASSETS
Cash and investments  $     286,002  $     194,523 
Interest receivable                776                380 

Total Assets  $     286,778  $     194,903 

FUND BALANCE
Restricted  $     286,778  $     194,903 
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SCHEDULE VIII

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - LCTOP

2018 2017
Revenues:

LCTOP Funds  $       89,254  $ - 
Interest income 2,621             1,420 

Total Revenues 91,875 1,420 

Change in Fund Balance 91,875 1,420 

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1 194,903 193,483 

Fund Balance Ending, June 30  $     286,778  $     194,903 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the SB 325 Fund for Article 8(c) of the Imperial 
County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the SB 325 Fund for Article 8(c) of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of June 30, 
2018, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the SB 325 Fund for Article 8(c) fund and do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis for the SB 325 Fund that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
and for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 
 
The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information. Such information does not include all 
of the information required or sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the SB 325 Fund’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which such 
partial information was derived. The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 were audited 
by other auditors and their report dated March 31, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated _____, 2019, on our 
consideration of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting of the 
SB 325 Fund and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Codes of Regulation (CCR) and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial County 
Transportation Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the SB 325 
Fund. 
 
 
San Diego, California 
__________, 2019 
 

127



IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
SB 325 FUND ARTICLE 8(C) 

PERTAINING TO SECTION 994000(C) OF THE PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 
 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017 

 
 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

3 

2018 2017

ASSETS -$                   -$                   

LIABILITIES -$                   -$                   

NET POSITION -$                   -$                   
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The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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2018 2017
Operating Revenues:

SB 325 Article 8(c) 3,140,850$    3,525,096$    

Operating Expenses:
Purchased Transportation Services 3,140,850      3,525,096      

Changes in Net Position -                     -                     
Net Position Beginning -                     -                     
Net Position Ending -$                   -$                   
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The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Transit Services 3,140,850$    3,525,096$    
Payment for Transportation Services (3,140,850)     (3,525,096)     

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities -                     -                     

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents -                     -                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning -                     -                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents Ending -$                   -$                   
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) SB 325 Fund was established through five contracts 
with outside vendors. They are held with First Transit, Inc. to provide the Imperial Valley Transit fixed route 
bus service, the IVT ACCESS which provides paratransit service exclusively for disabled persons under the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), IVT-RIDE an intra city dial-a-ride for seniors and persons with 
disabilities within Brawley, Calexico, Imperial and the West Shores, IVT-RIDE El Centro an intra city dial-a-
ride for seniors and persons with disabilities within El Centro, and IVT MedTrans which provides non-
emergency transportation to medical facilities in San Diego in order to administer regional transportation 
programs and services.   

 
The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
SB 325 Fund of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting 
 

Fund Accounting 
 
The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific 
activities.  ICTC accounts for the SB 325 activities within its SB 325 Proprietary Fund. 

 
C. Use of Estimates  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  

 
D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. 
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize 
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the 
respective funds including the SB 325 fund average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks 
related to cash and investments, applicable to the SB 325 fund, are those of the County investment pool and 
are disclosed in the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic financial statements can be 
obtained at the County Administrative Office. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. PriorYear Data 
 

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. 
This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete 
presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the SB 325 Fund’s prior year financial statements, from which this 
selected financial data was derived. 

 
 
NOTE 2 – TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
In accordance with Section 99400(c) of the Public Utilities Code, funds received pursuant to this section may only 
be used for public transportation services.  
 
ICTC is subject to provisions pursuant to Section 6634 and 6637 of the California Administrative Code (CAC) 
and Sections 99268.3, 99268.4, and 99268.5 of the Public Utilities Code. 
 
Section 6634 
 
Pursuant to Section 6634, a transit claimant is precluded from receiving monies from the Local Transportation 
Fund and the State Transit Assistance Fund in an amount which exceeds the claimant's capital and operating costs 
less the required fare, local support and the amount received during the year from a city or county to which the 
operator has provided service beyond its boundaries. 
 
Section 6637 
 
Pursuant to Section 6637, the claimant must maintain its accounts and records in accordance with the Uniform 
System of Accounts and Records adopted by the State Controller. The Imperial County Transportation 
Commission did maintain its accounts and records in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts and 
Records. 
 
Section 99268.3, 99268.4 and 99268.5 
 
The Imperial County Transportation Commission has several fare box recovery ratios for the various services. 
 
 2017 2017 2018 2018  
 Required Actual Required Actual 
IVT 17% 21.97% 17% 17.74% 
 
The blended fare box recovery ratio requirement for IVT is 17.0%. 
 
IVT Access 10% 4.8% 10% 4.5% 
IVT RIDE 10% 5.3% 10% 4.4% 
MedTrans 15% 8.1% 15% 9.0% 
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NOTE 2 – TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
(CONTINUED) 
 
For fiscal year June 30, 2018 the fare box recovery ratio requirement was not met for IVT ACCESS, IVT RIDE 
(consolidated) or IVT MedTrans. 
 
For fiscal year June 30, 2017 the fare box recovery ratio requirement was not met for IVT ACCESS, IVT RIDE 
or IVT MedTrans. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the SB 325 Funds for Article 8(c) of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the SB 325 Funds for Article 8(c) of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated _______, 2019 . 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the SB 325 Funds for Article 8(c) of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, the Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Statutes and the California Code of Regulation Section 6667, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
__________, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Regional Planning and Programs fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Regional Planning and Programs fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Regional Planning and Programs fund and do not 
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation Commission as of 
June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information on page 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis for the Regional Planning and Programming 
fund that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting and for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Regional Planning and Programs fund’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying 
supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Prior-Year Comparative Information 
 
The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information. Such information does not include all 
of the information required or sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in 
conjunction with the Regional Planning and Program fund’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2017, from which such partial information was derived. The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017 were audited by other auditors and their report dated March 31, 2018 expressed an unmodified opinion 
on the financial statements. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated _____, 2019 on our 
consideration of the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting of the 
Regional Planning and Programs fund and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, grant agreements, the Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California 
Codes of Regulation (CCR) and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial 
County Transportation Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the 
Regional Planning and Programs fund. 
 
 
San Diego, California 
_______, 2019 
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2018 2017
ASSETS

Cash and investments 556,230$       565,085$       
Accounts receivable 11,796           -                     
Interest receivable 882                1,161             

Total Assets 568,908$       566,246$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable 9,463$           6,654$           

Fund Balance
Restricted 559,445         -                     
Assigned -                     227,409         
Unassigned -                     332,183         

Total Fund Balance 559,445         559,592         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 568,908$       566,246$       
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2018 2017
Revenues

State allocation 300,000$       300,000$       
Membership revenues 100,000         100,028         
Interest revenues 3,263             2,451             
Other revenues 33,749           247,978         

Total Revenues 437,012         650,457         

Expenditures
STIP-PPM Category A 100,000         106,151         
STIP-PPM Category B 100,000         100,000         
STIP-PPM Category C 134,987         96,489           
General and administrative expenditures 82,406           54,123           
Professional services 19,766           17,770           

Total Expenditures 437,159         374,533         

Change in Fund Balance (147)               275,924         

Fund Balance Beginning 559,592         283,668         

Fund Balance Ending 559,445$       559,592$       
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTYING POLICIES 
 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The Imperial County Transportation Commission (ICTC) Regional Planning and Programs (RPP) fund was 
established by ICTC in order to administer regional transportation programs and services.   
 
The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
RPP fund of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
B.  Basis of Accounting 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements  
 
Fund Accounting 
 
The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out 
specific activities.  ICTC accounts for the RPP activities within its RPP Special Revenue Fund. 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted or 
committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
The special revenue funds of ICTC are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues are available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred.  Operating statements of governmental funds present increases (revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current resources.  

 
C.  Use of Estimates  

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTYING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Fund Balances  

 
Fund balance is reported according to the following classifications: nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts 
can be spent. 
 
Restricted fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints 
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the ICTC considers restricted funds to have been spent first. 

 
E. Cash and Investments 

 
The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. 
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize 
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the 
respective funds including the RPP fund average cash balance.  The investment policies and the risks related 
to cash and investments, applicable to the RPP fund, are those of the County investment pool and are 
disclosed in the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic financial statements can be 
obtained at the County Administrative Office. 
 
The RPP fund’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value measurements are based on 
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs.  The RPP fund’s deposits and withdrawals in the County Investment Pool are 
made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the RPP fund’s investment in the County Investment 
Pool is measured based on uncategorized inputs not defined as Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3. 

 
F. Prior Year Data 

 
Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. 
This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete 
presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the RPP fund’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected 
financial data was derived. 
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NOTE 2 – STIP-PLANNING, PROGRAMMING & MONITORING PROGRAM 
 
The California State Budget Act of 2010 appropriates State Highway funds under local assistance for the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Planning, Programming and Monitoring Program (PPM). PPM is 
defined as the project planning, programming and monitoring activities related to development of the Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program and the STIP required by Government Code Section 14527 and for the 
monitoring of project implementation for approved projects, referred as PPM projects. The California 
Transportation Commission is tasked to allocate these funds in accordance with the amounts approved in the 
STIP in accordance with section 14527 (h) of the California Government code. 

 
These funds are to be used for the following expenditure categories: 
 

Category A: Regional transportation planning activities including development of the Regional Transportation 
Plan Update. 
 
Category B: Program development and monitoring including the preparation of the ICTC Improvement 
Program and the State Transportation Improvement Program, monitoring the implementation of projects 
including project delivery and compliance with federal and state law, and California Transportation 
Commission Guidelines. 
 
Category C: Regional transit planning activities, including program development and monitoring. 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, ICTC applied for and received proceeds of $300,000 from the State 
of California STIP-PPM Program. As of June 30, 2018, the remaining balance in Category C was $7,139. 
Category A and B proceeds have been fully expended. 
 
Qualifying expenditures must be encumbered within three years from the date of the allocation and expended 
within three years from the date of the encumbrance. 
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2018 2017
Schedule I - General and Administration Expenditures

Communications - Phone Charges 2,187$           1,331$           
Communications - Cell Phone/Pager 2,366             2,388             
Insurance Liability 14,911           13,560           
Memberships 6,974             6,487             
Fuel Expense 999                1,166             
Publications and Legal Notices 1,312             458                
Rents & Leases 28,336           11,809           
Special Dept Expenditure 4,624             4,812             
Utilities 7,328             3,752             
Office Expenditures 4,443             4,053             
Equipment 6,731             2,653             
Maintenance 2,195             1,654             

General and Administration Expenditures - Total 82,406$         54,123$         

Schedule II - Professional Services

Professional & Special Service 9,375$           10,250$         
Professional & Special Services - Legal and Accounting 8,303             6,878             
Professional & Special Services - Data Pro 2,088             642                

Professional Services - Total 19,766$         17,770$         

Schedule III - STIP-PPM Category A

Salaries & Benefits 100,000$       106,151$       

Schedule IV - STIP-PPM Category B

Salaries & Benefits 91,390$         97,252$         
Professional & Special Services 8,610             2,748             

STIP-PPM Category B - Total 100,000$       100,000$       

Schedule V - STIP-PPM Category C

Salaries & Benefits 102,268$       57,319$         
Professional & Special Services 17,169           16,697           
Travel 15,550           22,473           

STIP-PPM Category C - Total 134,987$       96,489$         
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Regional Planning and Programs fund of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Regional Planning and Programs fund’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated ___________, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding and response as item 2018-001  that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Regional Planning and Programs fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and the California Code of Regulation Section 6662, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Management’s Response to Findings 
 
Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Imperial County Transportation Commission’s response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
San Diego, California 
_________, 2019 
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Finding 2018-001 

YEAR-END CUTOFF 

Criteria: 

In order to fairly present year-end financial statements, management must perform a year-end closing process to 
accumulate, reconcile, and summarize information for inclusion. The closing process should include the review of 
balances for proper cutoff.  

Condition: 

During our audit, we noted the following: 

 Certain accounts payable balances had not been accrued and required adjustment.
 Certain accounts receivable balances had not been accrued and required adjustment.

Context: 

The condition noted above were identified during testing over various accounts and balances.   Accounts payable 
balances were adjusted approximately $9,300 and accounts receivable balances were adjusted approximately 
$11,800.    

Effect: 

Adjustments were necessary to fairly present the financial statements.  

Cause: 

The year-end closing process was not complete. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that ICTC enhance its year-end closing process. This can be accomplished through a 
comprehensive closing checklist. The checklist should list each task, the person responsible for its completion, 
and the date the task should be completed. 

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 

ICTC staff will research additional resources, obtain tools, i.e., checklists and templates, in order to ensure that 
the year-end close is completed as required. ICTC staff will create documentation to track year end transactions.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the Regional Collaboration Fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of combined 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the Guidelines on Auditing for Conformance, published by the Imperial Valley Association of Governments and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting polices used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Regional Collaboration Fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission as of June 30, 
2018, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Regional Collaboration Fund and do not purport 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Imperial County Transportation Commission as of June 30, 
2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters  
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the combined financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
We have also issued a report dated _______, 2019 on our consideration of the Regional Collaboration Fund's 
compliance over financial reporting based on an audit performed in accordance with statutes, rules and 
regulations of the California Development Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the 
Transportation Commission. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and 
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Imperial County Transportation 
Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance as it relates to the Regional Collaboration 
Fund. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
_______, 2019 

155



ASSETS

Cash and Investments 7,712$             
Interest Receivable 9                      

Total Assets 7,721$             

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3,781$             

Fund Balance
 Restricted 3,940               

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 7,721$             
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Revenues

Regional Collaboration Funds 27,474$           
Interest Income 26                    

Total Revenues 27,500             

Expenditures
General & Admin 394                  
Professional Services 23,166             

Total Expenditures 23,560             

Change in Fund Balance 3,940               

Fund Balance Beginning, July 1 -                       

Fund balance Ending, June 30 3,940$             
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 
 

The Regional Collaboration Fund of the Imperial County Transportation Commission was created for the 
purpose of tracking activities of joint projects with other agencies in the region. 
 
The financial statements are intended to reflect the financial position and changes in financial position of the 
Regional Collaboration Fund of ICTC only.  Accordingly, the financial statements do not purport to, and do 
not, present fairly the financial position of ICTC, as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting 
 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements  
 

Fund Accounting 
 
The accounts of ICTC are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity wherein operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that record resources, related benefits, and equity, segregated for the purpose of carrying out 
specific activities.  ICTC accounts for the Regional Collaboration activities within a Special Revenue Fund. 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted or 
committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
The special revenue funds of ICTC are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues 
are available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred.  Operating statements of governmental funds present increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
resources. 
 

C. Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Fund Balances  

 
Fund balance is reported according to the following classifications: nonspendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts 
can be spent. 
 
Restricted fund balance represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints 
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other 
governments. 
 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available, the ICTC considers restricted funds to have been spent first. 
 

E. Cash and Investments 
 
The County of Imperial's Auditor-Controller’s office acts as a trustee for the funds received and disbursed. 
Cash and investments are held in the County investment pool to facilitate cash management and maximize 
investment opportunities and yields.  Investment income resulting from this pooling is allocated to the 
respective funds including the Regional Collaboration Fund’s average cash balance.  The investment policies 
and the risks related to cash and investments, applicable to the Regional Collaboration Fund, are those of the 
County investment pool and are disclosed in the County’s basic financial statements.  The County’s basic 
financial statements can be obtained at the County Administrative Office. 
 
The Regional Collaboration Fund’s cash and investments are reported at fair value.  The fair value 
measurements are based on the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  The STAF’s deposits and withdrawals in the County 
Investment Pool are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.  Accordingly, the Regional Collaboration 
Fund’s investment in the County Investment Pool is measured based on uncategorized inputs not defined as 
Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3. 
 
 

NOTE 2 – REGIONAL COLLABORATION REVENUE SOURCES  
 

As it pertains to the brownsfield projects the funds will be used for: 
 
Project management and planning, completion of Environmental Site Assessments (Phase 1 and Phase 2) for 
various eligible properties in the city of Brawley, cleanup and reuse planning, community outreach and 
completion of required reporting associated with the grant.  
 
As it pertains to the Broadband grant the funds will be used for: 
 
Project management and planning, identification of regions where broadband services are not available or have 
limited availability, community outreach and coordination with area stakeholders, coordination with internet 
service providers, development and review of reasonable avenues for broadband delivery, preparation of mapping 
documentation as required and required reporting associated with the grant.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Commission Board Members  
County of Imperial, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Regional Collaboration fund of the 
Imperial County Transportation Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to 
the combined financial statements, which collectively comprise the Regional Collaboration Fund of the Imperial 
County Transportation Commission’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated _____, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the combined financial statements, we considered the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the combined 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Imperial County Transportation Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's combined financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charge with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Regional Collaboration Fund of the Imperial County 
Transportation Commission’s combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Imperial County Transportation 
Commission’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
___________, 2019 
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

IMPERIAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _________, 

2019 by and between the Imperial County Transportation Commission (“ICTC”), a public 
entity, and Mark Baza (“Baza”), an individual. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, ICTC was established under and is governed by Division 12.8, 
commencing with Section 132800, of the California Public Utilities Code and other 
statutes relating to transportation commissions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director is the chief executive officer of ICTC and 

serves at the pleasure of the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of ICTC; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that Baza possesses the knowledge, skills and 
experience to act as the Executive Director of ICTC; and  

 
  WHEREAS, Baza has agreed to continue to act as ICTC Executive Director. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 

Section 1. Services. 
 

Baza agrees to perform the following services as Executive Director of ICTC: 
 

A.  The Executive Director serves as the chief executive officer of ICTC and takes 
direction from the Board. The Executive Director manages the daily operations of 
ICTC, implements and monitors Board policy, and coordinates the activities of 
the ICTC on behalf of the Board.  Baza shall have full executive authority to 
perform all duties, services, and actions necessary or advisable to carry out the 
policies of ICTC and the needs of ICTC and the Board.  Baza shall diligently 
attend to the business of ICTC, including attendance at meetings and proper 
supervision of those individuals who report directly to the Executive Director. 
Baza shall provide the services in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, 
ICTC Bylaws, and other policies adopted by the Board. 

 
B. The Executive Director shall perform all the duties described on the job 

description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein. 
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Section 2. Compensation. 
 

A. In consideration of the performance of Executive Director, ICTC agrees to pay 
Baza as detailed below effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2019.  
Baza shall continue to receive payments in the same amount as he currently receives 
under his current contract with ICTC until payments under this contract begin.  

 
1. A salary of ___ hundred _____ ___ thousand ___ ____ dollars  and _____ 

___ cents  ($_________) annually or _____ __ dollars and _____ ___ cents 
($_____) hourly.  This position is an FLSA exempt, managerial, position that 
is not entitled to overtime pay. 
 

2. Additionally, ICTC shall pay to the Executive Director a monthly car 
allowance of ___ hundred dollars ($___.00). 

 
3. ICTC shall pay all holidays, sick leave, vacation and administrative leave as 

that paid to ICTC employees as defined in the Personnel Policy and Procedures 
for ICTC.  Baza shall receive all benefits normally provided to ICTC employees 
except for health.   

 
4. In the event of termination of this Agreement by the Board, Baza may receive 

severance pay as detailed in Section 5 of this Agreement. 
 

B. Reimbursement: ICTC shall reimburse all reasonable and necessary travel and 
educational expenses for attending seminars and conferences representing ICTC as 
its Executive Director at meetings shall be reimbursed by ICTC. 

 
C. Status with ICERS: The Board and Baza will retain retirement membership services 

under the 1937 Retirement Act through the Imperial County Employees’ Retirement System 
(ICERS).  Baza and Board will make contributions consistent with the requirements of ICERS 
for employers and employees. 

 
D. Except as provided under Paragraph A, ICTC shall not be responsible to pay Baza 

any compensation, out-of-pocket expenses, fees, or other remuneration. 
 

Section 3. Review. 
 

On an annual basis the Board shall identify a focused set of priority objectives for 
the organization and Baza.  The Board will review the performance of the Executive 
Director annually. At the Board's option, a merit increase in salary of up to five percent 
(5%) may be considered upon each annual review. 
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A.  Prior to the Evaluation.  Prior to the beginning of each performance evaluation 

cycle, Baza shall prepare a summary of the current year priority objectives, goals 
and accomplishments for review by the Board.  

 
B. Contents of the Evaluation. Employee shall be evaluated on effective management 

and the progress made on the Board’s annual priorities, among other factors 
determined by the Board.  

 
D. Amendments and Changes to Evaluation Process.  The Board may amend or 

change the evaluation process as needed provided that such changes will take place 
at the beginning of the next evaluation period.   

 
Section 4. Term. 

 
This Agreement shall commence July 1, 2019, and remain in effect for _______ (_) 

year(s). 
 

Section 5.  Termination. 
 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement, without cause and without notice. 
 

B. Severance Pay. In the event the Board terminates Baza prior to the expiration of the 
employment agreement, Baza shall be entitled to severance pay as set forth below.  

 
1. If there are six (6) or more months remaining in the employment 

Agreement, Baza shall be entitled to an amount equal to six (6) months 
salary.  
 

2.  If there are less than six (6) months remaining in the employment 
Agreement, Baza shall be entitled to an amount equal to the exact 
number of months remaining in the Agreement. For example, if Board 
terminates Baza with only two and one-half (2.5) months remaining in 
this Agreement, Baza shall receive two and one-half (2.5) months of 
severance pay.  
 

3. In the event Baza receives any severance pay, the amount shall be paid 
to Baza in monthly installments and shall not be paid in one lump sum. 
Such monthly installments shall be equivalent to the amount of Baza’s 
regular monthly salary until the severance amount owed is exhausted.  
 

4. There shall be no severance pay if Baza elects to terminate his contract 
with Board.  
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C. Upon termination of this Agreement, Baza shall immediately turn over to ICTC any 

and all copies of studies, reports, or analyses, whether or not completed, prepared by 
him in connection with this Agreement. Such materials shall become the permanent 
property of ICTC. 
 

D. Termination for Cause.  In the event Baza is terminated For Cause, Baza will not be 
entitled to severance pay.  However, ICTC shall pay Baza all wages owed through the 
date of termination For Cause as well as any accrued but unused vacation time in 
accordance with applicable local, state and federal law.  Accrued but unused sick leave 
and administrative leave benefits are not paid upon termination For Cause.  The 
precondition of termination For Cause is met if one or more of the following defined 
instances exists:  

 
1. Baza is convicted of a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;  
2. Baza makes an intentional and material act of dishonesty, 

misappropriation, embezzlement, intentional fraud, or similar conduct 
while acting within the scope of employment; 

3. Baza’s willful or grossly negligent conduct results in material damage 
to ICTC property; 

4. Baza makes threats of violence or acts of violence in the workplace;  
5. Baza engages in conduct found to constitute illegal harassment, 

discrimination or retaliation of another employee, consultant, member 
representative or staff, client, customer, or independent contractor; 

6. Baza is unable to perform the essential functions of his position with or 
without reasonable accommodations due to a disability in conformity 
with applicable local, state and federal law; 

7. Baza’s gross negligence or intentional and willful refusal to follow the 
reasonable and lawful directions of the Board that Baza fails to cure 
within fifteen (15) business days of receiving written notice from the 
Board;  

8. Baza’s material non-performance or breach of this Agreement, 
violation of ICTC policy, or any other statutory duty owed by Baza to 
ICTC that Baza does not cure within fifteen (15) business days after 
Baza’s receipt of written notice thereof from the Board (provided such 
violation is capable of cure).  

 
Section 6. Representations 

 
A. Baza represents and warrants that the subject services shall be performed 

exclusively by him. 
 

B. Baza represents and warrants that all reports, analyses, grant applications or other 
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documents developed under this Agreement shall become the exclusive property of 
ICTC. 

 
Section 7.  Indemnification 

 
A.  Except as provided below, ICTC shall indemnify and hold harmless Baza from any 

and all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees, as a result of acts that Baza performed in the course and within the 
scope of his employment. 

 
B.  ICTC’s obligation shall not apply in the event that claims, liabilities, losses, 

damages or expenses, including reasonable attorneys, fees, are incurred as a result 
of Baza’s acts which are intentional, grossly negligent, or undertaken outside of the 
course and scope of employment.  ICTC's obligation shall not apply in the event 
that claims, liabilities, losses, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, are incurred as a result of Baza’s failure to promptly notify ICTC of any claim 
made or litigation filed against him; or he has settled or compromised the claim or 
litigation as to him without the ICTC's prior written consent. 

 
C.  Baza shall, as a condition precedent to receipt of such indemnification, cooperate 

with ICTC and its legal counsel in the defense of any related action, claim or 
proceeding.  ICTC will otherwise defend Baza with its own legal counsel and shall 
include the payment of his reasonable attorneys’ fees only in the event ICTC 
requires Baza to retain separate counsel.  Should Baza retain separate counsel not 
suitable to ICTC or upon his own initiative without being required to do so by 
ICTC, ICTC shall have no obligation to pay Baza’s attorneys fees or costs. 

 
Section 8. Insurance. 

 
A. At Baza’s sole cost and expense, he shall obtain, and keep in force at all times 

during this Agreement, a policy of automobile liability insurance for any automobile 
that he may use in connection with his duties, or traveling to conferences or 
meetings, with coverage that is acceptable to the Board. 

 
B.  ICTC shall maintain Workers’ Compensation coverage and any other insurance that 

is required under California law, for all employees, including Baza. 
 

Section 9. Licenses and Permits. 
 

Baza represents and warrants that he possesses all required licenses to perform 
all aspects of this Agreement, such as a valid Driver’s License. 
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Section 10. Modification. 
 

No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge, or change of this Agreement shall 
be valid unless it is in writing and signed by both parties. 

 
Section 11.  Severance. 

 
In the event that any provision is adjudged or decreed to be invalid, such ruling 

shall not invalidate the entire Agreement but shall pertain only to the provision in 
question and the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid, binding, and in full 
force and effect. 

 
Section 12. Non-Assignment. 

 
Baza shall not assign, transfer or subcontract this Agreement nor his rights or 

duties under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the Board. Any 
attempt by him to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without 
obtaining the prior written consent of the Board is void. 

 
Section 13. Force Majeure. 

 
Baza shall not be held responsible for delays in performing services as a result of 

acts beyond his control and without his fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, 
acts of God or public enemies, acts of state or local governments or public agencies, 
utility or telecommunication delays or failures, accidents not resulting from his 
negligence, fire, flood, storms, epidemics, strikes, lockouts, industrial disturbances, war, 
rebellion or civil strife. 

 
Section 14. Notices. 

 
All notices and communications deemed by either party to be necessary or 

desirable are to be in writing and given to the other party by personal delivery or sent 
through the U.S. mail, first class with prepaid postage, addressed as follows: 

 
To ICTC:  Chair of the Board of Commissioners 

Imperial County Transportation Commission 
              1503 N. Imperial Ave., Suite 104 
              El Centro, CA  92243 
 

To Executive Director: Mark Baza 
              2710 W. Canyon Ave. 
              San Diego, CA 92123  
 

Notice shall be deemed to have been delivered upon receipt by the party. Addresses 
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may be changed by giving written notice of such change to the other party. 
 
 

Section 15. Governing Law and Venue.  
 

A.  The rights and obligations of the parties and all interpretation and performance of 
this Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of 
California. 

 
B.  To the extent permitted by law, any action brought by either party with respect to 

this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction within 
Imperial County. 

 
Section 16.  Entire Agreement. 

 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Baza and ICTC with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes  all previous negotiations, 
proposals, commitments, writings, advertisements, publications, and understanding 
of any nature whatsoever unless  expressly included in this Agreement. 

 
 

Section 17.  Counterparts  
 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and by facsimile. 
 
 

Section 18. Review of Agreement Terms  
 

This Agreement has been reviewed by legal counsel for ICTC and Baza has 
been afforded an opportunity to have this Agreement reviewed by legal counsel, and 
no presumption or rule that ambiguities shall be construed against the drafting party 
shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of the same or any subsequent  
amendments. 

 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as 

of the day and year first written above. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR:  

 
    _____________________ 
   By:  Mark Baza 

IMPERIAL  COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:  Robert Amparano, Chairman

 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 

Katherine Turner 
County Counsel 

 
 
 
    ________________________ 

By: Eric Havens 
Deputy County Counsel
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